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THIS AGREEMENT is dated 30 August 2006
BETWEEN:

(1) ALLAN FUNG ASSETS LIMITED, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and having its registered office at Sea Meadow House, P.O. Box 116,
Blackburne Highway, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands and its
correspondence address in Hong Kong at 8th Floor, Mita Centre, 552-566 Castle Peak
Road, Kwai Chung, Hong Kong (“AFAL”);

(2) FUNG YU HING ALLAN (holder of Hong Kong Identity Card number:
E271741(0)) of 8th Floor, Mita Centre, 552-566 Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung,
Hong Kong (“Mr. Allan Fung”);

(AFAL and Mr. Allan Fung collectively as the “Vendors” and each a *“Vendor);
and

(3) NICE HILL INVESTMENTS LIMITED, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and having its registered office at P.O. Box 957, Offshore
Incorporations Centre, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands and its
correspondence address in Hong Kong at Unit G, 10/F., Seabright Plaza, 9-23 Shell
Street, North Point, Hong Kong (the “Purchaser™).

WHEREAS:

(A)  Panorama International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 17 October 2001 and the issued shares of
which are listed on GEM (as defined below). As at the date of this Agreement, the
Company has an authorised share capital of HK$15,000,000 divided into
1,500,000,000 Shares (as defined below) of which 402,300,000 Shares have been
issued and fully paid or credited as fully paid. Further particulars of the Company are
set out in Part A of Schedule 1.

(B)  The Vendors are the beneficial owners of 251,671,500 Sale Shares (as defined below)
and details of their respective holdings are as follows:

Yendor Number of Sale Shares
AFAL 233,340,000
Mr. Allan Fung 18,331,500

The Sale Shares represent approximately 62.56% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date hereof and the Sale Shares are the entire shareholdings held
by the Vendors in the Company.

(C)  The Vendors have agreed to sell and the Purchaser has agreed to purchase the Sale
Shares subject to and upon the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

NOW IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS:
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1. INTERPRETATION

1.1 In this Agreement (including the recitals and Schedules), unless the context otherwise
requires, the following words and expressions shall have the following meanings ascribed to
each of them below:

“Accounts Date” 31 March 2006

“Audited Accounts” the audited consolidated balance sheet of the
Group as at the Accounts Date and the audited
consolidated profit and loss accounts of the
Group for the year ended on the Accounts Date,
a copy of which has been attached to this
Agreement as Exhibit “A” and initialed by the
parties hereto for the purpose of identification

“Board” the board of directors of the Company from
time to time
“Business Day” a day (other than a Saturday and days on which

a tropical cyclone warning signal no. 8 or above
or a black rainstorm warning signal is hoisted in
Hong Kong at any time between 9:00 a.m. and
5:00 p.m.) on which licensed banks in-Hong
Kong are generally open for business
throughout their normal business hours

“CCASS” the Central Clearing and Settlement System
established and operated by Hong Kong
Securities Clearing Company Limited

“Code” the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and
Mergers, as amended from time to time

“Companies Ordinance” the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)

“Completion” completion of the sale and purchase of the Sale

Shares in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this Agreement

“Completion Date” subject to satisfaction and/or waiver of all
conditions set out in Clause 3.1, the date falling
on the third Business Day after all the
conditions set out in Clause 3.1 have been
fulfilled or waived or such other date as may be
agreed befween the parties




“Corporate Guarantees”

“Deposit”

“Disclosed”

“Dollars” or the sign “HKS$”

“Fncumbrance”

“Escrow Agent”

“Escrow Agreement”

“Escrow Money”

“Executive”

the corporate guarantees given by the Company
in favour of several financial institutions to
secure the indebtedness, liabilities and
obligations of the Group owed to such financial
institutions and subsisting as at the date of this
Agreement (save and except the corporate
guarantee given by the Company in respect of
the ICBC Facilities), a summary of which are
set out in Schedule 6

has the meaning as ascribed to under Clause
2.4(1)

disclosed in a fair and accurate manner in this
Agreement, the Audited Accounts, the
Management Accounts, the - Previous
Announcements and any disclosure in writing
provided by the Vendors to the Purchaser prior
to the execution of this Agreement

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of
Hong Kong

any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien, (otherwise
than arising by statute or operation of law),
equities, hypothecation or other encumbrance,
priority or security interest, deferred purchase,
title retention, leasing, sale-and-repurchase or
sale-and-leaseback arrangement whatsoever
over or in any property, assets or rights of
whatsoever nature and includes any agreement
for any of the same

Michael Li & Co. of 14th Floor, Printing House,
6 Duddell Street, Central, Hong Kong

an escrow agreement dated 17 July 2006 and
entered into among AFAL, Mr. Fung Yee Sang,
the Escrow Agent, the Purchaser and Mr. Chin

a sum of HK$1,000,000 deposited by the
Purchaser with the Escrow Agent under the
Escrow Agreement

the Executive Director of the Corporate Finance
Division of the SFC from time to time and any
delegate of such Executive Director

e,

Ny
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“Financial Advisers’

“GEM”

SlGroup”

“Hong Kong”

“ICBC”

“ICBC Facilities”

“Intellectual Property Rights”

“Listing Rules”

“Macao”

“Mainland China”

Veda Capital Limited and Kingston Corporate
Finance Limited, the joint financial advisers to
the Purchaser in respect of the Offer

the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock

Exchange

the Company and the Subsidiaries and the
expressions “member of the Group” and
“Group Company” shall be construed
accordingly

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
of the People’s Republic of China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Asia) Limited

the banking facilities granted by ICBC to PDCL
for an overdraft of HK$2,000,000 and an
instalment loan of HK$2,400,000 secured by,
among other matters, a corporate guarantee by
the Company of HK$4,400,000

all relevant licences over industrial and
intellectual property right used or acquired by
any Group Company, including (without
limitation) patents, trade marks, service marks,
trade names, domain names, designs, copyrights
and the copyright in all drawings, plans,
specifications, designs and computer software
(including in each case any application therefor)
in any part of the world and whether or not
registered or registrable and all know-how,
inventions, formulae, trade secrets, confidential
or secret processes and information and the
registered trademarks as set out in Part B of
Schedule 4

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM

the Macao Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China

the People’s Republic of China, which for the
purpose of this Agreement, excludes Hong
Kong, Macao and Taiwan

Ny



“Management Accounts”

“Management Accounts Date”

“Material Adverse Change (or Effect)”

“Mr. Chin”

“New Escrow Agreement”

“Offer”

“Offer Circular”

“Options”

the unaudited consolidated balance sheet of the
Group as at the Management Accounts Date
and the unaudited consolidated profit and loss
accounts of the Group for the period
commencing from 1 April 2006 to the
Management Accounts Date, a copy of which
has been attached to this Agreement as Exhibit
“B” and initialed by the parties hereto for the
purpose of identification

31 July 2006

any change (or effect) which has a material and
adverse effect on the financial or trading
position, business or property, results of
operations of the Company

Chin Wai Keung Richard, the sole beneficial
owner, and sole director, of the Purchaser

‘an escrow agreement to be entered into

contemporaneously with the signing of the
Agreement among the Vendors, the Escrow
Agent and the Purchaser pursuant to which the
Escrow Agent will hold the Deposit in
accordance with its terms and conditions

the unconditional cash offer to be made by the
Financial Advisers on behalf of the Purchaser
(subject to Completion) to the Shareholders
(other than the Purchaser and parties with whom
the Purchaser are acting in concert (as defined
in the Code)) for their Shares in compliance
with the Code, and the comparable offer to be
made in accordance with the Code by the
Purchaser for all outstanding Options

the composite offer document containing the
offeror document and the offeree board circular
to be issued and referred to in Clause 6

an aggregate of 27,750,000 options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
comprising the Pool A Options and the Pool B
Options which remain outstanding as at the date
hereof, details of which are set out in Schedule
7



“PDCL”

“PEGL’ b

“Pool A Options”

“Pool B Options”

“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”

“Previous Announcements”

“Sale Shares™

EESFC!S

“ShareS”

Panorama Distributions Company Limited, a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company

Panorama Entertainment Group Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability and an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

an aggregate of 15,900,000 Pool A options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme having an exercisable period from 9
May 2003 to 8 May 2012 at an exercise price of
HK$0.033 per Share which remain outstanding
as at the date hereof, details of which are set out
in Schedule 7

an aggregate of 11,850,000 Pool B options
granted under the Pre-JPO Share Option
Scheme having an exercisable period from 9
May 2003 to 8 May 2012 at an exercise price of
HK$0.231 per Share which remain outstanding
as at the date hereof, details of which are set out
in Schedule 7

the pre-TPO share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 25 April 2002 and expired on 9
May 2002

all public announcements and circulars to
Shareholders made by or on behalf of the
Company since the date of initial listing of the
Shares on GEM and published in the website on
GEM

the 251,671,500 Shares registered in the name
of and beneficially owned by the Vendors as to
233,340,000 Shares by AFAL and 18,331,500
Shares by Mr. Allan Fung, together representing
approximately 62.56% of the entire issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this
Agreement

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong
Kong

shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company
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“Shareholders” the holders of Shares

“Share Option Scheme” the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 25 April 2002

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

“Subsidiaries” the subsidiaries (have the meaning ascribed

thereto under Section 2 of the Companies
Ordinance) of the Company as set out in Part B
of Schedule 1

“Taxation™ all forms of taxation including overseas taxation
and all forms of profits tax, interest tax, estate
duty and stamp duty and all levies, imposts,
duties, charges, fees, deductions and
withholdings whatsoever charged or imposed by
any statutory, governmental state, provincial,
local government or municipal authority
whatsoever and the expression “Tax™ shall be
construed accordingly

“this Agreement” this agreement for the sale and purchase of the
Sale Shares, as amended from time to time

“Warranties” the representations, warranties and indemnities
given by the Vendors joint and severally under
Clause 5 and Schedule 2

1.2 The headings of this Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall be
ignored in construing this Agreement. Unless the context otherwise requires, references in
this Agreement to the singular shall be deemed to include references to the plural and vice
versa; references to one gender shall include all genders and references to any person shall
include an individual, firm, body corporate or unincorporated.

1.3 References in this Agreement to Clauses, Schedules and Exhibits are references to
clauses of and schedules and exhibits to this Agreement and references to sub-clauses and
paragraphs are unless otherwise stated, references to sub-clauses and paragraphs of the
Clause or, as appropriate, the Schedule or the Exhibit in which the reference appears.

1.4  Reference to any ordinance, regulation or other statutory provision or Stock Exchange
rules in this Agreement includes reference to such ordinance, regulation, provision or rule as
modified, consolidated or re-enacted from time to time. References to documents shall be
construed as references to such documents as may be amended from time to time.

1.5  The expressions the “Vendors” and the “Purchaser” shall, where the context permits,
include their respective successors and personal representatives.



1.6 References in this Agreement to time are to Hong Kong time.
1.7 ‘ The schedules to and the recitals of this Agreement shall form part of this Agreement.
2. SALE AND PURCHASE OF THE SALE SHARES AND CONSIDERATION

2.1  Subject to and upon the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Vendors shall as
beneficial owners sell and the Purchaser shall purchase the Sale Shares with effect from
Completion free from all Encumbrances together with all rights now and hereafter attaching
thereto including but not limited to all dividends paid, declared or made in respect thereof on
or after the Completion Date.

2.2 The Purchaser shall not be obliged to purchase any of the Sale Shares unless the
purchase of all the Sale Shares is completed simultaneously.

2.3 The aggregate consideration for the sale and purchase of the Sale Shares (the
"Consideration") shall be the sum of HK$10,066,860.

2.4  The Consideration shall be satisfied by the Purchaser in the following manner:

(1) the transfer of the Escrow Money with interest accrued thereon together with
payment of an additional sum of HKS$1,000,000 to the Escrow Agent as
refundable deposit within three Business Days upon signing of this
Agreement (the “Deposit”) to be held by the Escrow Agent under the New
Escrow Agreement and to be released to the Vendors on Completion;

2) HK$2,000,000 (the “Retained Consideration I”) shall be paid by the
Purchaser to the Vendors within three Business Days upon the Vendors
producing evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Purchaser that the
corporate guarantee provided by the Company for the I[CBC Facilities has
been fully released and discharged, and such payment obligation shall arise
on or after Completion;

(3) HK$1,000,000 (the “Retained Consideration II”) shall be paid by the
Purchaser to the Vendors within three Business Days upon the Vendors
producing evidence reasonably safisfactory to the Purchaser that all the
Corporate Guarantees have been fully released and discharged and such
payment obligation shall arise on or after Completion; and

(4) the balance of the Consideration shall be paid by the Purchaser to the
- Vendors on Completion in accordance with Clause 4.5(2).

3. CONDITIONS

3.1  Completion is conditional upon:

(1)  the Shares remaining listed and traded on GEM at all times from the date of
this Agreement up to (and including) the Completion Date, excluding any
temporary suspension not exceeding ten consecutive trading days for the
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purposes of clearing any announcements, circulars or documents in relation to
the transactions contemplated under this Agreement;

(2)  trading in the Shares on GEM not being revoked or withdrawn at any time
prior to the Completion Date;

(3)  there being no indication from the Stock Exchange or the SFC prior to the
Completion Date that listing of the Shares will be suspended, revoked or
withdrawn at any time after Completion, whether in connection with any of
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or otherwise;

(4)  all necessary consents and approvals required to be obtained on the part of the
Vendors in respect of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereby having been obtained,

(5)  the Warranties remaining true and accurate in all respects;

(6)  the publication of the joint announcement in relation to this Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereby by or on behalf of the Company and the
Purchaser which has been cleared by the Stock Exchange and the SFC; and

(7)  delivery of a written undertaking (as set out in Schedule 8) under seal from
each of Mr. Allan Fung, Ms. Leung Siu Kuen, Janet and Mr. Fung Yee Sang,
the grantees under the Pre-IPO Share Option ‘Scheme undertaking to the
Purchaser he/she shall not exercise any of his/her Pool A Options as from the
date of the said written undertaking up to and including the close of the Offer
and will accept the offer for the Options.

32  Each of the parties hereto shall use their respective best endeavours to procure the
fulfillment of the conditions set out in Clause 3.1 and, in particular, shall procure that all
information and documents required pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Code and other
applicable rules, codes and regulations whether in connection with the preparation of the
announcements, circulars, Offer Circular, reports, documents, independent advice or
otherwise are duly given promptly to the Company, the Purchaser, the Stock Exchange, the
SFC and other relevant regulatory authorities, as the case may be.

33  The Purchaser may at any time by notice in writing to the Vendors waive any of the
conditions set out in Clauses 3.1 (1), (4) and (5) and such waiver may be made subject to
such terms and conditions as are determined by the Purchaser. If any of the conditions set
out in Clause 3.1 has not been satisfied and/or waived at or before 12:00 noon on 20
September 2006, being the date falling 21 days afier the date of this Agreement or such other
date as both the Purchaser and the Vendors may agree (the "Long Stop Date"), the Deposit
shall be refunded by the Escrow Agent releasing the same to the Purchaser with interest
accrued within seven days upon the expiry of the Long Stop Date, and this Agreement shall
cease and determine (save and except Clauses 9, 11 and 15 which shall continue to have full
force and effect) and none of the parties shall have any obligations and liabilities hereunder
and none of the parties hereto shall take any action to claim for damages or to enforce
specific performance or any other rights and remedies save for any antecedent breaches of
the terms hereof.



4. COMPLETION

4.1  Upon compliance with or fulfillment or waiver of all the conditions set out in Clause
3.1, Completion shall take place at 14th Floor, Printing House, 6 Duddell Street, Central,
Hong Kong (or such other place as may be agreed between the parties) on the Completion
Date at or before 4:00 p.m. when all the acts and requirements set out in this Clause 4 shall
be complied with.

42  The Vendors shall deliver or procure the delivery to the Purchaser or io its order of all
the following:

(1)  instruments of transfer in respect of the transfer of the Sale Shares duly
executed by each of the registered holders thereof in favour of the Purchaser
(and/or its nominees) and the original share certificates for the Sale Shares; or,
in the case where all or part of the Sale Shares have been deposited with a
CCASS account, evidence to the Purchaser’s satisfaction that such documents
have been executed and instructions provided by the Vendors as may be
required to effect the transfer of the Sale Shares to such CCASS participants’
or investor participants’ accounts as may be designated by the Purchaser, and
such other documents as may be required to give a good and effective transfer
of title to the Sale Shares to the Purchaser or such nominees and to enable the
Purchaser or such nominees to become the registered and beneficial holders
thereof free from all Encumbrances in accordance with Clause 2.1;

(2)  such other documents as may be required to give a good and effective transfer
of title of the Sale Shares to the Purchaser (and/or its nominees) and to enable
the Purchaser (and/or its nominees) to become the registered holder(s) thereof;

(3)  a copy, certified as true and complete by a director of AFAL of the written
resolutions of the board of directors of AFAL signed by all of its directors
approving this Agreement and all other transactions contemplated under this
Agreement and authorising a person or persons to execute the same and all
other documents relating or incidental thereto (under seal where appropriate)
for and on behalf of AFAL;

(4)  an undertaking from AFAL to deliver to the Purchaser within 15 Business
Days after Completion a certificate of incumbency dated not more than ten
Business Days immediately after the Completion Date issued by the registered
agent of AFAL setting out certain particulars of AFAL and a certificate of
good standing in respect of AFAL dated not more than 15 Business Days
immediately after the Completion Date;

(5) if so requested by the Purchaser,

()  all (original and/or copy) statutory records and minutes books (which
shall be written up to date as at Completion) including all available
original/copies of the memorandum and articles of association or other
equivalent constitutional documents, certificates of incorporation and
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(6)

™

()

®)

(10)

business registration certificates (if any) and other statutory records of
the Company in its possession;

(i)  the common seal and all rubber stamps, cheque books, cheque stubs
and bank statements, receipt books, all current insurance policies,
books and accounts, title deeds and evidence of ownership to all assets
and all current contracts and all other accounting records of the
Company;

(iii)  all correspondence and other documents belonging to the Company;
and

(iv)  copies of all tax returns and assessments of the Company (receipted
where the due dates for payment fell on or before Completion),

or written authorities in favour of the Purchaser for the collection of such
documents;

the written resignations of all directors (and if so requested by the Purchaser,
the secretary, the qualified accountant, and the authorised representatives) of
the Company together with a written acknowledgement from each of such
directors (and if applicable, the secretary, the qualified accountant, and the
authorised representatives) and the Company confirming that neither party has
any claims against the other whether by way of compensation, remuneration,
severance payments, expenses, damages or otherwise, such resignations shall
take effect on the earliest date as permitted under the Code and the form of the
resignation letter is set out in Schedule 5 to this Agreement;

copy, certified as true and complete by a director of the Company, of
resolutions of the Board approving the matter referred to in Clause 4.4 below;

a cheque for the Vendors’ share of 50% of the total amount of stamp duty
payable in respect of the transfer of the Sale Shares, drawn in favour of The
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region;

the original confirmation signed by each of the Vendors confirming to the
Purchaser that there has been no breach of any of the Warranties or other
provisions of this Agreement by the Vendors; and

delivery of copy documents as set out in Clause 4.8 or an undertaking to the
Purchaser that the Vendors will procure the delivery of such copy documents
or failing which, take all necessary actions to rectify the same within 30 days
after the date of this Agreement and to fully indemnify and hold harmless the
Purchaser and the Company on demand against any and all reasonable costs,
expenses, claims, losses and liabilities which may be incurred or suffered by
the Purchaser or the Company on a dollar-for-dollar basis in respect of any
failure of the Vendors to deliver such copy documents or to take all necessary
actions to rectify the same.

11



4,3  The Vendors and the Purchaser shall procure that:

(M

@

all the directors of the Company shall resign as directors of the Company with
effect from the earliest time permitted under the Code; and

unless the Purchaser has otherwise agreed with the individual concerned, the
secretary, the qualified accountant and/or the authorised representatives of the
Company shall resign as secretary, qualified accountant, and/or the authorised
representatives of the Company respectively with effect from the earliest time
permitted under the Code in the form of the letter set out in Schedule 5 of this
Agreement.

4.4  The Vendors shall procure a mecting of the Board be held at which:

ey

2

©)

such person(s) as the Purchaser shall nominate (at least five Business Days
prior to the Completion) be appointed as additional director(s), (and where
applicable) company secretary and qualified accountant of the Company from
the calendar day immediately following the close of the Offer;

the resignation of the directors of the Company, (and where applicable) the
secretary, qualified accountant and/or the authorised representatives of the
Company as referred to in Clause 4.3 shall be approved; and

to the extent permitted by the Code or other rules or regulations applicable to
the Company, the amendments of the signatories and bank mandates for all
accounts maintained by the Company with banks and financial institutions in
such manner as the Purchaser may require (and notified to the Vendors at least
three Business Days prior to the Completion) shall be approved.

45  Against compliance and fulfillment of all acts and the requirements set out in Clauses
4.2, 4.3 and 4.4, the Purchaser shall:

(1

)

<)

4

procure the Escrow Agent to release the Deposit forthwith to the Vendors (or
as they may direct);

deliver to the Vendors a banker's draft issued by a licensed bank in Hong
Kong for the balance of the Consideration (as referred to in Clause 2.4(4)) and
made payable to the Vendors (or as they may direct);

produce to the Vendors instruments of transfer in respect of the Sale Shares
duly executed by the Purchaser (and/or its nominees) and shall procure the due
stamping of the same, and the Purchaser shall attend to due stamping of the
same without incurring any late penalties on the ad valorem stamp duty
payable;

deliver to the Vendors a copy, certified as true and complete by the sole
director of the Purchaser, of resolutions of the board of directors of the
Purchaser approving this Agreement and all other transactions contemplated
under this Agreement and authorising a person or persons to execute the same

12



and all other documents relating or incidental thereto (under seal where
appropriate) for and on behalf of the Purchaser; and

(5)  if so requested by the Vendors, deliver to the Vendors a copy of the evidence
submitted by or on behalf of the Purchaser to the SFC, pursuant to the Code,
confirming its financial resources to satisfy full acceptance of the Offer.

4.6 In the event that the Vendors or the Purchaser shall without reasonable ground fail to
do anything required to be done by it under Clauses 4.2, 4.3, 4.4 or 4.5, without prejudice to
any other right or remedy available to the other party, such other party may:

(1)  defer Completion to a day not more than 14 days after the date fixed for
Completion (and so that the provision of this paragraph (1) shall apply to
Completion as so deferred); or

(2) proceed to Completion so far as practicable but without prejudice to such
other party’s right to the extent that the Vendors or the Purchaser shall not
have complied with its obligations hereunder; or

3) rescind this Agreement without liability on its part provided that in the event
that the Purchaser shall solely be in default, the Escrow Agent shall upon such
rescission release the Deposit to the Vendors who shall be entitled to forfeit
the same absolutely. In all other cases, the Deposit with interest accrued shall
fully be refunded to the Purchaser.

47 If the ICBC Facilities have not been released or discharged on or before the
Completion Date, the Purchaser is entitled to withhold the Retained Consideration I referred
to in Clause 2.4(2) until receipt of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Purchaser that the
corporate guarantee provided by the Company for the ICBC Facilities has fully been released
or discharged on or before the expiry of the CG Release Date (as defined in Clause 5.7), as
extended pursuant to Clause 5.7 (if applicable), whereupon the Purchaser shall pay the
Retained Consideration I to the Vendors within three Business Days of receipt of the above-
mentioned evidence by means of a banker’s draft issued by a licensed bank in Hong Kong
and made payable to the Vendors (or as they may direct).

4.8  Each of the Vendors jointly and severally agrees and undertakes to the Purchaser that
they shall fully indemnify and hold harmless the Purchaser and the Company on demand
against any and all reasonable costs, expenses, claims, losses and liabilities which may be
incurred or suffered by the Purchaser or the Company on a dollar-for-dollar basis in respect
of any failure of the Vendors to:

(1)  inrelation to PDCL:

(1) make board minutes or resolution in relation to the appointment of
Bonham Secretaries Limited as its current company secretary;

(i)  make board minutes or resolutions in relation to the appointment of
Realty Dragon Limited as its company secretary; and
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@)

€)

(4)

)

(iii) make board minutes or resolutions in relation to the resignation of
Karalon Limited as its company secretary and all the necessary
statutory filings with all the applicable authorities and registries in
relation to PNC Secretarial Services Limited, Abarem Company
Secretary Limited and Karalon Limited as its company secretaries;

in relation to Panorama Entertainment Company Limited:

1) make all the necessary statutory filings with all the applicable
authorities and registries in relation to the appointment of Mr. Allan
Fung as its director on 1 August 1991;

(ii) make all the necessary statutory filings with all the applicable
authorities and regisiries in relation to the appointment of Chow Ching
Ping Margaret as its director;

(iii) make board minutes or resolution in relation to the appointment of
Bonham Secretaries Limited as its current company secretary and
related statutory filings with all the applicable authorities and
registries; and

(iv) make board minutes or resolution in relation to the appointment of
Cheng Chor Miu as its company secretary and related statutory filings
with all the applicable authorities and registries; and

(v)  make board minutes or resolution in relation to the resignation of
Karalon Limited as its company secretary and all the necessary
statutory filings with all the applicable authorities and registries in
relation to the appointment and resignation of PNC Secretarial Services
Limited, Leung Siu Kuen Janet, Abarem Company Secretary Limited
and Karalon Limited as its company secretaries;

in relation to Go Film Distribution Limited:

(1) make the complete and up-to-date register of directors;

(ii)  make the complete and up-to-date register of secretaries;

(iii) make the complete and up-to-date register of members; and

(iv)  make the complete and up-to-date register of charges;

make board minutes or resolutions in relation to the appointment and
resignation of the directors and secretary of Panorama Entertainment
(Singapore) PTE Limited and related statutory filings with all the applicable

authorities and registries;

make all the necessary payments and contributions to the Mandatory Provident
Fund due from the Company; and
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(6)  make the original blank instruments of transfer duly executed by Mr. Allan
Fung holding each of the one share in the issued share capital of PDCL,
Panorama Entertainment Company Limited and Punch Pictures Company
Limited respectively as nominee of PEGL.

5. VENDORS’ WARRANTIES AND UNDERTAKINGS

5.1 Each of the Vendors hereby jointly and severally represents, warrants and undertakes
to the Purchaser (for itself and for the benefit of its successor) that save as Disclosed, the
Warranties are true and accurate in all respects as at the date of this Agreement and will
continue to be so up to and including the time of Completion. Each of the Vendors hereby
jointly and severally acknowledges that the Purchaser in entering info this Agreement is
relying on the Warranties.

52  Each of the Vendors hereby jointly and severally agrees that the Purchaser may treat
each of the Warranties as separate and independent. In addition, each of the Warranties is
without prejudice to any other Warranty and, except where expressly otherwise stated, no
provision in any Warranty shall govern or limit the extent or application of any other
provision in any Warranty.

53  The rights to claim under the Warranties shall survive Completion to the extent that
the disclosure of any breach is not made prior to Completion and the rights and remedies of
the Purchaser in respect of any breach of the Warranties shall not be affected by Completion.

54  Bach of the Vendors hereby jointly and severally undertakes in relation to any
Warranty which refers to the knowledge, information or belief of the Vendors that they have
made reasonable enquiry into the subject matter of that Warranty and that they do not have
the knowledge, information or belief that the subject matter of that Warranty may not be
correct, complete or accurate in any respect.

5.5  Ifit shall be found at any time after Completion that, save as Disclosed, any of the
Warranties is not true, correct and accurate in any respect, and the effect thereof is that the
Company has suffered actual losses or damages, then the Vendors shall jointly and severally
indemnify on demand the Purchaser such loss and damages and hold the Purchaser harmless
from and against such losses, damages and costs, to the extent and so long as that:

(1)  such damages and losses are subject to a final judgment which is no longer
subject to any appeal or review;

(2)  if the claim for such damages and losses is settled, the terms of settlement
shall be approved by the Vendors in advance, such approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld or delayed;

(3)  if the claim for such damages and losses is defended, the Purchaser shall be
allowed reasonable opportunities to participate in the conduct of the legal
proceedings; and/or
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(4)  there shall be no claim for economic loss and/or claims in respect of warranty
claims by the customers of the Subsidiaries set forth in Part B of Schedule 1
so long as such claims are not pending or threatened against the Company and
do not solely and directly result in the revocation of the listing status of the
Company or in the suspension of trading in the Shares on GEM for more than
10 consecutive trading days.

56 Save as Disclosed, each of the Vendors hereby jointly and severally covenants with
and undertakes to indemnify the Company, forthwith upon a demand being made by the
Purchaser on behalf of the Company, a sum equal to the amount of any Tax liability of any
member of the Group resulting from or by reference to any income, profits or gains earned
accrued or received on or before Completion or any event on or before Completion whether
alone or in conjunction with other circumstances and whether or not such Tax is chargeable
against or attributable to any other person. This indemnity shall not apply to Tax arising in
the ordinary and usual course of business of any member of the Group.

5.7  The Vendors shall jointly and severally, at their own costs and expenses, procure the
release and discharge of the obligations and liabilities of the Company under the corporate
guarantee provided by the Company for the ICBC Facilities and the Corporate Guarantees as
soon as practicable and in any event on or before the date falling 3 months after the date of
Completion (the “CG Release Date™). The Purchaser may at its absolute discretion extend
the CG Release Date for 1 month to the Vendors to procure such release and discharge of the
corporate guarantee provided by the Company for the ICBC Facilities and the Corporate
Guarantees if a written request for such extension is made by the Vendors before the expiry
of the CG Release Date. The Vendors shall produce evidence reasonably satisfactory to the
Purchaser that all the Corporate Guarantees have been so released and discharged on or
before the expiry of the CG Release Date (as extended, if applicable), whereupon the
Purchaser shall pay to the Vendors the Retained Consideration I referred to in Clause 2.4(3)
within three Business Days of receipt of the above-mentioned evidence by means of a
banker’s draft issued by a licensed bank in Hong Kong and made payable to the Vendors (or

as they may direct).

58  Each of the Vendors jointly and severally agrees and undertakes to the Purchaser that
they shall fully indemnify and hold harmless the Purchaser and the Company on demand
against any and all reasonable costs, expenses, claims, losses and liabilities which may be
incurred or suffered by the Purchaser or the Company on a dollar-for-dollar basis in respect
of any obligation or liability of the Purchaser or the Company arising out of the corporate
guarantee provided by the Company for the ICBC Facilities and the Corporate Guarantees
before the full release and discharge of the Company from the corporate guarantee provided
by the Company for the ICBC Facilities and such Corporate Guarantees.

59  Each of the Vendors hereby jointly and severally undertakes with the Purchaser that
until Completion the Group shall carry on its business in a manner consistent with its
existing practice and shall:

(1)  procure that the Group shall not without first obtaining the prior written
consent of the Purchaser enter into any contract or commitment of an unusual
or onerous nature or other than in the normal and ordinary course of business;
and
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keep the Purchaser reasonably informed of all matters relating to the Group,
its business, assets and prospects.

5.10 Without prejudice and notwithstanding Clause 5.9 above, each of the Vendors hereby
jointly and severally undertakes that except as required or contemplated by this Agreement,
or in the ordinary course of business, or with the approval of the new directors of the
Company to be nominated by the Purchaser, it shall, until the resignations of all the directors
of the Company named in Part A of Schedule 1 to this Agreement take effect, take all steps
necessary to ensure that the Company or any member of the Group (as the case may be) shall
not carry out any of the following actions and no resolution of the board of directors of the
Company or any member of the Group (as the case may be) or of its general meeting shall be
passed to carry out the same unless the written consent of the Purchaser is obtained (such
consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed):

(1

)

€))
)

()

(6)
(7)

(®

®

the creation or issue of any shares in any member of the Group, the transfer of
shares in any member of the Group other than the Company, or the grant of
any options over any shares or the uncalled capital of any member of the
Group or the issue by any member of the Group of any warrant, securities or
other obligations convertible into shares in any member of the Group or enter
into any agreement or arrangement to do any of the same;

the capitalisation, repayment or other form of distribution of any amount
standing to the credit of any reserve of any member of the Group on the
redemption or purchase of any shares in any member of the Group or any other
reorganisation of share capital;

the winding-up or liquidation of any member of the Group;

the alteration of the rights attaching to any of the Sale Shares or the shares in
any member of the Group;

the alteration of the memorandum of association and bye-laws of the
Company and the passing of any resolutions inconsistent with the provisions
of this Agreement;

the acquisition or disposal of any property or other asset by the Company;

the acquisition or disposal of any property or other asset by any Subsidiary
(other than in its ordinary course of business);

the acquisition or formation by any member of the Group of any subsidiary or
the acquisition of any share in any other company or the participation by any
member of the Group in any partnership or joint venture save for intra-
Subsidiaries transactions;

the entering into of any material contract other than in its ordinary course of
business;
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(10} the lending of any moneys (otherwise than by way of deposit with a bank or
other institution the normal business of which includes the acceptance of
deposit), the granting of any credit or the giving of any guarantee or indemnity
(other than in the ordinary course of business);

(11) the amalgamation or merger of any member of the Group with any other
COImpany or CoOncern;

(12) the appointment of the gqualified accountant, company secretary and
compliance officer of the Company save for their replacement;

(13) the declaration by the Company of any dividend or other distribution;

(14) the making of any material capital commitment exceeding HK$100,000 by
any member of the Group;

(15)  the borrowing of any moneys from banks, financial institutions and any other
third parties by the Company;

(16) the borrowing of any moneys from banks, financial institutions and any other
third parties by any of the Subsidiaries;

(17) the employment or engagement of any staff, consultants or personnel by the
Company;

(18) the entering into of any connected transaction or notifiable transaction (as
defined in the Listing Rules); or

(19) doing, allowing and procuring any act or omission on or before the effective
date of resignations of all the directors of the Company named in Part A of
Schedule 1 to this Agreement which will constitute a breach of any of the
Warranties or a breach of Rule 17.26 of the Listing Rules.

Subject as aforesaid, the Vendors shall keep the Purchaser closely informed of any
resolutions of the directors or members of any member of the Group.

5.11 Each of the Vendors jointly and severally agrees and undertakes to the Purchaser that
they shall fully indemnify and hold harmless the Purchaser and the Company on demand
against any and all reasonable costs, expenses, claims, losses and liabilities which may be
incurred or suffered by the Purchaser or the Company on a dollar-for-dollar basis in respect
of any obligation or liability of the Purchaser or the Company which may arise in relation to
the ICBC Facilities of any compliance issues under the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations.

5A. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

5A.1 The Vendors shall jointly and severally be liable in respect of any breach of any
Warranties and their liabilities shall be limited as provided in this Clause SA.
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5A.2 The Vendors shall not be liable for any claim in respect of the Warranties and this
Agreement unless:

(1)

@

®)

the Vendors shall have received from the Purchaser written notice of such
claim (including but not limited to any claim relating to Taxation) specifying
in reasonable details the event or default to which the claim relates and the
nature of the breach and (if capable of being quantified at that time) the
amount claimed not later than the expiry of a period of 30 months after the
Completion Date;

the aggregate amount of liability of the Vendors for all claims made in
connection with the Warranties or otherwise under the terms of this
Agreement shall not exceed the Consideration;

the amount recoverable from the Vendors in respect thereof is in excess of
HK$100,000 or if any claim is below HK$100,000, when aggregated with any
other amounts so recoverable by the Purchaser in respect of any other claims
below HK$100,000 exceeds HK$100,000, the Vendors shall be liable for all
amount so claimed.

5A.3 Notwithstanding any provision herein, the liability of the Vendors in connection with
the Warranties and this Agreement shall cease on the expiration of 30 months afier the
Completion Date, except in respect of the matters which have been the subject of a bona fide
claim in writing notified to the Vendors in compliance with Clause SA.2(1) as before such

date.

5A.4 In any claim under a Warranty and this Agreement, the amount of such claim shall be
reduced by the amount (if any) by which:

(1

@)

any liability of the Group included in the Audited Accounts and/or the
Management Accounts has been discharged or satisfied below the amount
attributed thereto or included in respect thereof in the Awudited Accounts
and/or the Management Accounts; and/or

any contingent or other matter provided against in the Audited Accounts
and/or the Management Accounts has in the event been over-provided for.

5A.5 The Vendors shall not be liable under the Warranties and this Agreement to the
extent that any depletion, diminution or reduction in the value or amount of any of the assets
of the Group oceurs as a result of or is otherwise attributable to:

(1)

@)

any legislation not in force at the date of this Agreement or any change of law
or administrative practice which takes effect retroactively or occurs as a result
of any increase in the rates of taxation in force at the date of this Agreement;

any voluntary act of any Group Company and/or the Purchaser after

Completion except where such act is done by the Purchaser bona fide and in
compliance with Clause 5A.8; and
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(3)  the Purchaser or any Group Company disclaiming any part of the benefit of
any capital or other allowance against taxation claimed on or before
Completion (except where such claims are disallowed by the Inland Revenue
Department of Hong Kong).

5A.6 The Purchaser shall reimburse to the Vendors an amount equal to any sum paid by
the Vendors to satisfy any claim under the Warranties which is subsequently recovered by or
paid to the Purchaser or the Group by any third party after deducting all reasonable costs and
expenses incurred by the Purchaser and/or the Group arising from or incidental to the
recovery of such amount from the third party.

5A.7 The Warranties shall be actionable only by the Purchaser and no other persons shall
be entitled to make any claim or take any action whatsoever against the Vendors under,
arising out of, or in connection with any of the Warranties.

5A.8 The Purchaser shall as soon as reasonably practicable procure the Group to inform
the Vendors in writing of any fact, matter, event or circumstance which comes to its notice or
to the notice of the Group whereby it appears that the Vendors are or may become liable to
make any payment under the Warranties and shall not settle or compromise such claim
without the prior written consent of the Vendors. At the request in writing by the Vendors,
the Purchaser shall, subject to the Purchaser and the Group being indemnified to the
Purchaser’s reasonable satisfaction against any liability, costs, damages or expenses which
may be incurred, take such action as the Vendors may reasonably request to avoid, dispute,
resist, compromise or defend the claim or liability for which the Vendors may be or become
directly or indirectly liable or responsible and the Purchaser shall further render or cause to
be rendered to the Vendors all such assistance as the Vendors may reasonably require in
connection with the foregoing.

6. THE OFFER

6.1 Subject to Completion and to the Purchaser and persons acting in concert with them
incurring a general offer obligation under Rule 26 of the Code in relation to the Company,
the Purchaser undertakes to the Vendors that the Purchaser will procure the Offer to be made
by or on behalf of the Purchaser within such time and on such terms as are required under the
Code (subject to any such modification, waiver or extension as may be granted by the
Executive) and shall use all reasonable endeavours to procure that the Offer Circular be
despatched by or on behalf of the Purchaser as soon as is reasonably practicable after the
announcement of the terms thereof and within the time limit required by the Executive and
the Code (or such later date as may be approved by the Executive), and the Vendors shall nse
all reasonable endeavours to procure the Company to despatch the Offer Circular containing
such information regarding the Offer and as required by the SFC, the Code, the Executive,
the Listing Rules and the Stock Exchange, to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
branch register of members of the Company on the date of the Offer Circular and otherwise
on such terms as the Purchaser may see fit but so that the Offer and the Offer Circular shall
comply in all respects with the requirements of the Code.

6.2  The Vendors shall, and shall use all reasonable endeavours to procure that the
Company will, take all actions necessary and provide all information and assistance required
by the Purchaser (or the Financial Advisers) to prepare the Offer Circular and to enable the
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Purchaser to procure the posting of the Offer Circular in accordance with Clause 6.1, and
shall undertake to ensure that the Offer Circular contains all such matters and information as
are appropriate or necessary for an offeree board circular for the purposes of the Code.

7. PURCHASER’S WARRANTIES

7.1  The Purchaser hereby represents and warrants to the Vendors that:

(1)  the Purchaser has the corporate power and has obtained all necessary
approval, authorisation and consents to enter into and perform its obligations
under this Agreement and to carry out the transactions contemplated hereby;

(2)  the Purchaser has taken all necessary corporate and other actions to authorise
the entering into and performance of this Agreement and to carry out the
transactions contemnplated hereby; and

(3)  this Agreement is a valid and binding obligation on the Purchaser.

72  The Purchaser hereby further warranis and undertakes to the Vendors that the.
Purchaser has sufficient financial resources necessary to satisfy fully the consideration for the
sale and purchase of the Sale Shares and that the Purchaser can and wili be able to
implement the Offer in full.

7.3 The Purchaser shall procure that the Company will change its name so as to remove
any reference to “Panorama” as soon as possible but in any event not later than 45 days after
the close of the Offer. The Purchaser shall ensure that the new name of the Company will
not bear any reference to “Panorama”.

8. FURTHER ASSURANCE

8.1  Any party hereto shall upon request by the other party hereto execute, do and perform
or procure to be executed, done and performed by other necessary parties all such further
acts, agreements, assignments, assurances, deeds and documents as the other party hereto
may reasonably require effectively to vest the registered and beneficial ownership of the Sale
Shares in the Purchaser or its respective nominees free from all Encumbrances and with all
rights now and hereafler attaching thereto and to effect any other transactions contemplated
herein.

82  The Vendors shall procure that as from the date of this Agreement, the Purchaser and
any persons authorised by it shall be given full access to the employees, premises, plant,
machinery, equipment, books of account, records and documents of the Group and the
directors and employees of the Group shall be instructed to give promptly to the Purchaser
and any persons authorised by it all information in relation to the Group that the Purchaser
may reasonably request. -

83  The Vendors confirm and agree and shall procure that as from the date of this
Agreement and until either 30 months after close of the Offer or after the relevant Subsidiary
ceases to be a member of the Group, whichever is earlier, the Purchaser shall be entitled to
appoint an observer (the “Observer”) (including the power to remove the Observer it
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appointed and to replace the Observer so removed) who is entitled to attend and speak and
participate by way of telephone conference (where appropriate) at any board meetings or
members meetings of any member of the Group and to receive all minutes, information and
documents of such meetings. Notice to the Observer shall be given in writing at least 48
hours in advance to the correspondence address provided by the Observer from time to time
and set out in sufficient details the nature of the business to be transacted at such meetings,
and where appropriate, with supporting documents. Copies of all notices, minutes,
information and documents shall be sent to the Observer at the same time (or before) such
minutes, information and documents are sent or delivered to other parties entitled to receive
the same. Where delivery of any documents to the Observer are not feasible, notice shall be
sent to the Observer informing him the nature of the documents and allow the Observer
inspection of the same at such time convenient to the Observer.

9. CONFIDENTIALITY AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

9.1  The Purchaser undertakes to the Vendors that it will not and will procure that its
officers, employees and advisers will not, at any time after the date of this Agreement,
without the prior written consent of the Vendors or save as required by law or any rule of any
relevant stock exchange body, disclose any information concerning the business, accounts,
finance or contractual arrangements or other dealings, transactions or affairs of the Group
supplied to the Purchaser, its officers, employees or its advisers by the Vendor, to any third
party (other than those of its officers, employees or advisers as are necessarily required in the
course of their duties to receive and acquire such documents, information and/or knowledge

under the same duty of confidentiality).

9.2  No public announcement or communication of any kind shall be made in respect of
the subject matter of this Agreement unless specifically agreed between the parties or unless
an announcement is required pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Code, the applicable laws and
regulations or the requirements of the Stock Exchange, the SFC or any other regulatory body
or authority. Where the Vendors are required by the Listing Rules, the Code, any relevant
laws or regulations or the requirements of the Stock Exchange, the SFC or any other
regulatory body or authority to make any press or other announcement not relating to this
Agreement before the close of the Offer, the Vendors shall so far as practicable consult the
Purchaser regarding the contents of such announcement prior to its release.

10. GENERAL

10.1 This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto with
respect to the matters dealt with herein and supersedes all previous agreements,
arrangements, statements, understandings or transactions between the parties hereto, if any,

in relation to the matters hereof and the parties acknowledge that no claim shall arise in

respect of amy agreement, arrangements, statements, undertakings or transactions so
superseded.

10.2 Any variation to this Agreement shall be binding only if recorded in a document
signed by all the parties hereto.

10.3 Time shall be of the essence of this Agreement but no failure by any party to exercise,
and no delay on its part in exercising any right hereunder will operate as a waiver thereof,
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nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right under this Agreement (including a
settlement with any of the parties hereto) preclude any other or further exercise of it or the
exercise of any right or prejudice or affect any right against any person under the same
liability whether joint, several or otherwise. The rights and remedies provided in this
Agreement are cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies provided by law.

10.4 None of the parties may assign or transfer any of their rights or obligations under this
Agreement.

10.5 If at any time any one or more provisions hereof is or becomes invalid, illegal,
unenforceable or incapable of performance in any respect, the wvalidity, legality,
enforceability or performance of the remaining provisions hereof shall not thereby in any
way be affected or impaired.

10.6 Each and every obligation, covenant, representation, warranty and undertaking of the
Vendors provided herein shall be joint and several obligations, covenants, representations,
warranties and undertakings of each of the Vendors, and the Purchaser shall be at liberty to
release, compound with or otherwise vary or agree to vary the liability of, or to grant time or
other indulgence, or make other arrangements with any one of the Vendors without the
consent or notice to the other and without prejudicing, affecting the right, remedy and power
of the Purchaser against the others.

11. NOTICES AND PROCESS AGENTS

111  Any notice, claim, demand, court process, document or other communication to be
given under this Agreement (collectively “communication” in this Clause 11) shall be in
writing in the English language and may be served or given personally or sent to the address
(including cable address) or facsimile numbers (if any) stated after the relevant party's name
in Schedule 3 for the time being of the party to be served, or to such other address (which
must be in Hong Kong) as may have been last notified in writing by such party to the party
serving the communication specifically referring to this Agreement. All communications
shall be served by the following means and the addressee of a communication shall be
deemed to have received the same within the time stated adjacent to the relevant means of
despatch:

Means of despatch Time of deemed receipt
Local mail or courier 24 hours

Facsimile on despatch

Air courier/Speedpost 3 days

Airmail 5 days

11.2 A communication served in accordance with Clause 11.1 shall be deemed sufficiently
served and in proving service and/or receipt of a communication it shall be sufficient to
prove that such communication was left at the addressee's address or that the envelope
containing such communication was properly addressed and posted or despatched to the
addressee's address or that the communication was properly transmitted by facsimile to the
addressee. In the case of facsimile transmission, such transmission shall be deemed properly
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transmitted on receipt of a satisfactory report of transmission printed out by the sending
machine.

11.3  Nothing in this Clause 11 shall preclude the service of communication or the proof of
such service by any mode permitted by law.

11.4 AFAL hereby irrevocably appoints Mr. Allan Fung as their agent to accept service of
legal process out of the courts of Hong Kong in connection with this Agreement. The
Vendors further agrees to maintain a duly appointed agent in Hong Kong to accept service of
process out of the courts of Hong Kong and to keep the other parties informed of the name
and address of such agent. Service on such process agent (or its substitute appointed
pursuant to the procedures described above) shall be deemed to be service on AFAL. The
provisions of Clauses 11.1 and 11.2 shall apply to the service of court process on the process

agent of AFAL.

11.5  The Purchaser hereby irrevocably appoints Mr. Chin as its agent to accept service of
legal process out of the courts of Hong Kong in connection with this Agreement. The
Purchaser further agrees to maintain a duly appointed agent in Hong Kong to accept service
of process out of the courts of Hong Kong and to keep the other parties informed of the name
and address of such agent. Service on such process agent (or its substitute appointed
pursuant to the procedures described above) shall be deemed to be service on the Purchaser.
The provisions of Clauses 11.1 and 11.2 shall apply to the service of court process on the
process agent of the Purchaser.

12. RESCISSION

If at any time before Completion, the Purchaser finds that any of the Warranties is not
true and accurate in any material respects, the Purchaser may, without prejudice to all other
rights and remedies available to it, rescind this Agreement by written notice to the Vendors.
If the Purchaser shall elect to rescind this Agreement, the Vendors shall fully indemnify the
Purchaser and keep the Purchaser fully indemnified in respect of all reasonable fees, costs
and expenses (including legal costs and expenses on a full indemnity basis) incurred by the
Purchaser after execution and in conmection with this Agreement (including rescission)
provided that the aggregate amount of liability of the Vendors for all claims made in
connection with such fees, costs and expenses shall not exceed HK$100,000.

13. COSTS AND STAMP DUTY

13.1 Each party shall bear its own costs and expenses (including legal fees) incurred in
connection with the preparation, negotiation, execution and performance of this Agreement
and all documents incidental or relating to Completion.

13.2  All stamp duty (if any) payable in connection with the sale and purchase of the Sale
Shares shall be borne by the Vendors of the one part and the Purchaser of the other part in
equal shares. :

14. COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed by the parties hereto in any number of counterparts
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and on separate counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be deemed an original
but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument and is binding on all parties. A
party may execute this Agreement and the documents referred to herein on a facsimile copy
counterpart and deliver his/its signature and/or seal by facsimile provided that such party
shall deliver his/its original signature and/or seal within 14 days from the date of execution
of this Agreement (or, as the case may be, the date of execution of the relevant document).

15. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

15.1  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of
Hong Kong. '

152 The parties hereto hereby irrevocably submit to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the
courts of Hong Kong.

IN WITNESS whereof this Agreement has been duly executed by all parties hereto
the day and year first above written.
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10.

SCHEDULE 1

PART A

PARTICULARS OF THE COMPANY

Date of incorporation
Place of incorporation

Address of registered office

Head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong

Authorised share capital

Issued share capital (as at the date of
this Agreement)

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Fung Yu Hing, Allan
Ms. Leung Siu Kuen, Janet
Mr. Fung Yee Sang

Mr. Au Lik Man, Simon

Non-executive Directors
Dr. Lo Wing Yan, William, JP
Ms. Fung Suen Lai, Jacqueline

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Koon Chung, Johnny
Mr. Chau, Stephen

Mr. Hui Kwok Wah

Secretary and qualified accountant

Financial year end

Auditors

17 October 2001
Cayman Islands

P.0O. Box 309, Ugland House, South
Church Street, George Town, Grand
Cayman, Cayman Islands, British West
Indies

8th Floor, Mita Centre, 552-566 Castle
Peak Road, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong

HK$15,000,000 divided into
1,500,000,000 Shares

HK $4,023,000 divided into 402,300,000
Shares

Ms. Leung Su Wing, Connie

31 March

CCIF CPA Limited



Name

Panorama
Entertainment Group
Limited (PEGL)

Panorama
Distributions
Company Limited
(PDCL)

Panorama
Entertainment
Company Limited

Panorama
Entertainment
(Singapore) Pte
Limited

Panorama Film
Company Limited

Punch Pictures
Company Limited

Panorama Theatrical
Distributions
Company Limited

T ORISR BT
ERAFRGEIRT

Scenerama Holdings
Company Limited

Scenerama Company
Limited

Part B

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

Percentage of

equity attributable
to the Company

Place of Principal
incorporation Direct Indirect activities
British Virgin 100% investment
Islands holding
Hong Kong - 100% Distribution of

(Note) video products
Hong Kong - 100% Holding of film

(Note) rights
Singapore - 100% Distribution of

video products

British Virgin - 100% inactive
Islands
Hong Kong - 100% Production of

(Note) film
British Virgin - 100% Investment
Islands holding
Taiwan 100% Representative

office

British Virgin - 58% Investment
Islands holding
British Virgin - 57.5% Investment
Islands holding
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Go Film Distribution = Hong Kong - 60% Distribution of
Limited films

Note:
One share of the issued share capital of the respective company is held on trust by Mr. Allan

Fung as nominee of PEGL.
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SCHEDULE 2

WARRANTIES

Save as Disclosed and up to and including Completion, to the best of the knowledge and
belief of the Vendors:

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

The Vendors and the Sale Shares

Subject to the conditions of this Agreement, each of the Vendors has full power and is
authorised to enter into and perform this Agreement and this Agreement will, when
executed, constitute legal, valid and binding obligations on the Vendors in accordance
with its terms.

At Completion, there will be no outstanding indebtedness or other liability (actual or
contingent) owing by any Group Company to the Vendors/or any director of a Group
Company or any person connected with the Vendors or with any such director nor is
there any indebtedness owing to a Group Company by any such person.

At Completion, the Sale Shares will be fully paid or credited as fully paid and
beneficially owned by the Vendors free from all Encumbrances and at Completion, the
legal and beneficial ownership of the Sale Shares will be vested in the Purchaser or, as
the case may be, its nominees free from all Encumbrances together with all rights

attaching thereto.

True copies or certified true copies of the memorandum of association and bye-laws
(or the equivalent constitutional documents) of the Company and the Subsidiaries have
been provided to the Purchaser. The copies of the memorandum and articles of
association (or the equivalent constitutional documents) of the Group Companies so
provided to the Purchaser are true and complete and have embodied in them or
annexed to them a copy of every such resolution as is required by the relevant
legislation or the jurisdiction in which the relevant Group Company is incorporated.

Apart from the Subsidiaries, no Group Company will at Completion be the owner or
the registered holder of any share in or other security of any body corporate whenever
and wherever incorporated nor has any Group Company agreed nor will it prior to
Completion agree to become the owner or registered holder of any such share or

security.

Each member of the Group is duly incorporated, constituted and legally subsisting
under the respective laws of the places of incorporation and establishment and there
has been no resolution or petition or order for the winding up of any member of the
Group and no receiver has been appointed in respect of any part of the assets of any
member of the Group prior to and at Completion.

The particulars of each Group Company as listed out in Schedule 1 are true and correct
in all material respects and accurately described the Company and the Subsidiaries.

The corporate structure of the Group as presented in Schedule 1 is and will continue to
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1.9

2.1

22

23

3.1

3.2

3.3

34

be corporate structure of the Group without any reduction or dilution of interest held
by the Company at Completion.

Save for the Sale Shares and the Options held by the Vendors, and the one share in
each of the issued share capital of PDCL, Panorama Entertainment Company Limited
and Punch Pictures Company Limited held on trust by Mr. Allan Fung as nominee of
PEGL, each of the Vendors and its ultimate beneficial owner(s) (as the case may be)
and their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) does not have any
shareholding, direct or indirect, in any of the Subsidiaries or the right to subscribe for
or to nominate persons to subscribe for securities in any of the Subsidiaries.

Shares and Options

Save for the Options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, there is no
option, right to acquire, mortgage, charge, pledge, lien or other form of security,
encumbrance or third party rights on, over or affecting any part of the unissued share
capital or loan capital of the Company or over any part of the issued or unissued share
capital or loan capital of any Group Company and there is no agreement or
commitment to give or create any of the foregoing and no claim has been made by any
person to be entitled to any of the foregoing which has not been waived in its entirety
or satisfied in full.

Save for the Options, there is no agreement or commitment outstanding which calls for
the allotment or issue of or accords to any person the right to call for the allotment or
issue of any shares in or securities of any Group Company.

Save as Disclosed and the Options, there are no other outstanding options as at the date
of this Agreement, and no option will be granted under the Share Option Scheme prior
to Completion.

Compliance and corporate matters

Each Group Company has duly and properly complied with all filing and registration
requirements in respect of corporate or other documents imposed under the relevant
laws of the jurisdiction in which it was incorporated.

The statutory books and minute books of each Group Company have been properly
written up and compliance has been made with all applicable legal requirements
concerning such Group Company and all issues of shares, debentures or other
securities thereof.

The register of members of each Group Company is correct and each Group Company
has not received any claim, application or request for rectification of its register of
members and, so far as the Vendors are aware, no circumstances which might lead to
any such claim, application or request for rectification of such register to be made have
arisen or occurred.

Each Group Company and its directors (in their capacity as such) have complied with
all relevant and applicable legislation and obtained and complied with all necessary
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3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

4.1

4.2

4.3

licences and consents to carry on business whether in the country, territory or state in
which it is incorporated or elsewhere, including applicable legislation relating to
companies and securities, real property, taxation and prevention of corruption and
have complied with all applicable legal requirements in relation to any transactions to
which it is or has been a party prior to Completion.

The minute books of directors' meetings and of shareholders' meetings respectively of
each Group Company contain properly written-up records of all resolutions passed by
the directors and the sharcholders respectively of each Group Company and no
resolutions have been passed by either the directors or the shareholders of the relevant
Group Company which are not recorded in the relevant minute books.

There are no charges in favour of any Group Company.

All title deeds and documents .necessary to prove their respective titles in material
assets of each Group Company, and an executed copy of all agreements which are
material to the Group and to which any Group Company is a party, and the original
copies of all other documents which are material to the Group and which are owned by,
or which ought to be in the possession of any Group Company are in their possession,
custody or control.

Each Group Company has duly and properly complied with ail the requirements under
the Listing Rules as amended from time to time and any other requirements as may
from time to time be imposed by the Stock Exchange, the SFC or other regulatory
authorities.

Audited accounts and Management Accounts

The Audited Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of all
relevant statutes and generally acceptable accounting practice and policies applied in
Hong Kong and all applicable Statements of Standard Accounting Practices issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants for the time being in force on
a consistent basis and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group for
the year ended on the Accounts Date and of its combined profits for the year ended on
the Accounts Date and make full provision for all actual liabilities, bad or doubtful
debts and Taxation and proper provision for or a note of (in accordance with good
accounting practice) all contingent, unqualified or disputed liabilities and all capital
commitments and have consistently applied the bases and policies of accounting
throughout the year ended on the Accounts Date and except where specified are not
affected by any extraordinary, exceptional or non-recurring item.

The provision for Taxation in the Audited Accounts is sufficient to cover all Taxation
assessed or liable to be assessed on the Group or for which the Group is then or may
then be or become accountable in respect of profits, income, earnings, receipts,
transfers, events and transactions up to the Accounts Date.

The Management Accounts:

(1)  were prepared on a recognised and consistent basis in accordance with
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4.5

accounting practices generally accepted in Hong Kong at the time they were
prepared and commonly adopted by companies carrying on businesses similar
to that carried on by the Group and on the same basis as the Audited Accounts
in respect of the previous three financial years ended on the Accounts Date;

(2)  correctly include all the assets of the relevant Group Company or, as the case
may be, the Group as at the Management Accounts and the rate of depreciation
adopted therein is sufficient for each of the fixed assets of the Group to be
written down to nil by the end of its useful life;

(3) correctly make or include full provision for all established labilities or make
proper and adequate provision for (or contain a note in accordance with good
accounting practice respecting) all deferred or contingent liabilities (whether
liquidated or unliquidated) and all capital commitments, whether actual or
contingent, of the relevant Group Company or, as the case may be, the Group
as at the Management Accounts Date and the reserves and provisions (if any)
made therein for bad and/or doubtful debts and for all Taxation relating to any
period on or before the Management Accounts are proper and adequate;

(4) give a true and fair view of the state of affairs and financial position of the
relevant Group Company or, as the case may be, the Group at the Management
Accounts Date and of the Group's results for the financial period ended on that
date and no event has occurred that has resulted in the results of the relevant
Group Company or, as the case may be, the Group in respect of the period
covered by the Management Accounts being abnormally high or low; and

6)) are not adversely affected by an unusual, exceptional, extraordinary or
non-recurring items.

The accounting and other books and records of each Group Company are in its
possession or control, have been properly written up and accurately present and reflect
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and standards all the
{ransactions entered into by each such Group Company or to which each such Group
Company has been a party and there are at the date hereof no material inaccuracies or
discrepancies of any kind contained or reflected in any of the said books and records,
and that at the date hereof they give and reflect a true and fair view of the financial,
trading and contractual position of each such Group Company and of its fixed and
current and contingent assets and liabilities and debtors and creditors.

Singe the Audited Accounts Date and save as Disclosed:

(1) none of the Group Companies has entered into any material contracts or
commitments binding on it (other than contracts entered into in the ordinary
course of its business) and (other than in the ordinary course of its business)
there has not been any acquisition or disposal or agreement to acquire or
dispose by any Group Company of material fixed or capital assets or any
agreement to effect the same;

(2) there has not been any creation of liabilities by any Group Company (other
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(4)
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(6)
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(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

than on normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of its business);

no event has occurred as regards any Group Company which would entitle any
third party to terminate any material contract or any material benefit enjoyed by
such Group Company or call in any material amount of money before the
normal due date therefor or indebtedness;

none of the Group Companies has created any mortgage or charge on the whole
or any substantial part of its assets;

none of the Group Companies has borrowed except from banks or authorised
institutions in the ordinary course of its day to day trading operation or
increased any secured liability;

the business of each Group Company has been carried on in the ordinary and
usual course and in the same manner (including nature and scope) as in the past,
no fixed asset or stock has been written up nor any debt written off, and no
unusual or abnormal contract has been entered into by any Group Company;

no resolution of any of the members of the Group in general meeting has been
passed other than resolutions relating to the business of an annual general
meeting which was not special business;

no Group Company has declared, paid or made nor is proposing to declare, pay
or make any dividend or other distribution;

the financial year end of the Company and all Subsidiaries has remained
unchanged;

there has been no material adverse change in the financial condition or
prospects of any of the members of the Group and each of the members of the
Group has entered into transactions and incurred liabilities only in the ordinary
course of trading;

no event has occurred which gives rise to a tax liability to any of the members
of the Group or deemed (as opposed to actual) income, profits or gains or
which results in the relevant company becoming liable to pay or bear a tax
liability directly or primarily chargeable against or attributable to another
person, firm or company;

no remuneration (including bonuses) or benefit payable to any officer or
employee of any of the members of the Group has been increased nor bas any
of the members of the Group undertaken any obligation to increase any such
remuneration at any future date with or without retrospective effect;

none of the Group Company has:

(a) issued or repaid or agreed to issue or repay any share or loan capital;
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(b) declared, made or paid any dividends or made any other distribution of
capital and no loan capital has been repaid in whole or in part; nor

(c) entered info any material transaction (including but not limited to any
sale or purchase of assets) or incurred any material liabilities (whether
actual or contingent) otherwise than in ordinary course of business;

(14) none of the assets of the Group Company has been depleted by any unlawful
act on the part of any person and there has been no material adverse change in
the business, financial or trading positions of the Group Company;

(15)  none of the Group Company has given any guarantee/indemnity or other form
of security in favour of the Company. As at Completion, save as Disclosed in
the Management Accounts, the Company will not have amy recorded or
unrecorded outstanding indebtedness, obligations or liabilities, whether actual,
contingent or deferred, due or owing to any of the Subsidiaries and none of the
Subsidiaries have any recorded or unrecorded outstanding indebtedness,
obligations or liabilities, whether actual, contingent or deferred, due or owing
to the Company, and the Company will not have any recorded or unrecorded
outstanding indebtedness, obligations or liabilities, whether actual, contingent
or deferred, due or owing to any of the Subsidiaries and none of the
Subsidiaries will have any recorded or unrecorded outstanding indebtedness,
obligations or liabilities, whether actual, contingent or deferred, due or owing
to the Company;

(16) the Group Company has not received any formal or informal notice to repay
under any agreement relating to any borrowing (or indebtedness in the nature of
borrowing) which is repayable on demand and which exceeds an aggregate
amount of HK$50,000 and the Group Company has been paying its creditors in
respect of all of its debts which have become due and payable in its ordinary
course of business;

(17) no party to any contractually binding agreement or arrangement with or under
an obligation to each Group Company is in default under it, being a default
which would be material in the context of each Group Company's financial or
trading position and, so far as the Vendors are aware, therc are mo
circumstances likely to give rise to such a default;

(18) each Group Company is not in default in any material respect under any
agreement or obligation to which it is party or in respect of any other
obligations or restrictions binding upon it;

(19) no contractual arrangements between any Group Company and any party
(including but not limited to financiers of any Group Company) which are of
material importance to the business of any Group Company will or may be
legally terminated as a result of the execution of this Agreement or
Completion;

(20) each Group Company has no outstanding Hability for any statutory or
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governmental levy or charge; and

(21)  each Group Company does not have any powers of attorney or other authorities
(express or implied) which are still outstanding or effective to or in favour of
any person to enter into any contract or commitment or to do anything on its
behalf.

4.6  Save and except the rebate of HK$1,174,366.60 as set out in the agreement dated 7
July 2006 and entered into between Amass Vision Company Limited and PDCL, and
trade rebates of not more than 10% provided in the ordinary course of business, no part
of the amounts included in the Audited Accounts and the Management Accounts or
subsequently recorded in the books of the Company, as owing by any debtors, has
been released on terms that any debtor pays less than the full book value of the its
debt, or has been written off, or has been proven to any extent to be irrecoverable, or is
now regarded by the Company (as the case may be) as irrevocable in whole or in part.

47  All debts due to any Group Company included in the Management Accounts (being
debts in excess of bad or doubtful debts for which provision has been made in the
Accounts) have either prior to the date hereof been realised or will within 24 months
from the date of Completion realise their full amount in cash.

4.8  No transaction of any material importance to which any Group Company is a party has
taken place which if it had taken place would have required to be disclosed in writing
to the Purchaser or reflected in the Management Accounts.

49  Adequate provisions have been made in the Management Accounts for all dividends
(if any) or other distributions (if any) to shareholders declared and remaining unpaid as
at the date hereof.

4.10 Since the Management Accounts Date and save as contemplated in this Agreement, no
dividend has been declared or paid or other distributions of capital made in respect of
any share capital of each Group Company.

4.11 There has been no Material Adverse Change (or Effect) of the Group as a whole since
the Management Accounts Date.

4.12 The Company has no present intention to discontinue or write down investments in
any other businesses nor is any such write down, in the reasonable opinion of the
Board, required.

5. Financial matters

5.1 Since the Management Accounts Date, there has not been and there is and will be no
agreement in respect of:

(1) any damage, destruction, or loss, which is not fully covered by insurance,
materially adversely affecting any properties or business of the Group (taken as
-a whole);
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5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

(2) any sale or transfer by amy Group Company of any material tangible or
intangible asset other than in the ordinary course of business, any mortgage or
pledge or the creation of any security interest, lien, or encumbrance on any
such asset, or any lease of property, including equipment, other than tax liens
with respect to taxes not yet due and statutory rights of customers in inventory
and other assets; :

3) any material transaction not in the ordinary course of business of any Group
Company;

(4) the lapse of any patent, utility models, design, trademark, trade name or service
mark or any application with respect to the foregoing by any Group Company
which is material in the context of the business of the Group as a whole; or

(5)  the making of any material loan, advance, indemnity or guarantee or the
granting of any security by any Group Company to or for the benefit of any
party not within the Group except the creation of accounts receivable in the
ordinary course of business.

The accounting books and records of each Group Company have been maintained in
accordance with the applicable accounting principles adopted in the jurisdictions where
the Group’s business is conducted and comply with the relevant statutory provisions of
such jurisdictions and have been properly written up and properly reflect all the
transactions to which that Group Company has been a party and there are at the date
hereof no material inaccuracies or discrepancies of any kind contained or reflected in
the said books and records.

No Group Company has any material capital commitment or is engaged in any scheme
or project requiring the expenditure of capital of a significant amount.

All dividends or distributions declared, made or paid by each Group Company have
been declared, made or paid in accordance with its bye-laws or articles of association
(or equivalent documents) and the applicable statutory provisions.

No Group Company has any material obligation or liability other than those which have
arisen in the ordinary course of its business or by operation of law or Disclosed.

The total amount borrowed by the Group from its bankers does not exceed any limits
granted under any relevant facilities and the total amount borrowed by any Group
Company from whatsoever source does not exceed any limitation on its borrowing
power contained in its bye-laws or articles of association, or in any debenture or loan
stock deed or other instrument.

None of the Vendors or any Group Company has done anything whereby the
continuance in full force and effect of any overdrafts, loans or finance facilities
extended to the Group (other than the ICBC Facilities) might be adversely affected or
prejudiced.

The Group has sufficient working capital for its existing business and operation.
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5.9  Save as Disclosed and other than liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of business
of the Group or otherwise in relation to this Agreement or the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, the Group Company had, as at the date of this
Agreement and up to Completion, no unrecorded liabilities, contingent liabilities and
undisclosed commitments.

5.10 Save as Disclosed and other than liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of business
of the Group or otherwise in relation to this Agreement or the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, as at Completion, each Group Company has no
recorded or unrecorded indebtedness or liabilities due or owing to any person, has not
given any guarantee / indemnity or other form of security in favour of any person, and
does not have any contingent liability or commitment towards any person.

5.11 Save as Disclosed, none of the Subsidiaries has any recorded or unrecorded
indebtedness, obligations or liabilities, whether actual, contingent or deferred, due or
owing to the Company or vice versa, :

5.12 Save the corporate gnarantee provided by the Company for the ICBC Facilities and the
Corporate Guarantees, the Compary has not given any guarantee or indemnity or other
form of security in favour of any Group Company.

5.13 There is no event or circumstance which constitute, or which with the giving of notice
or lapse of time or both would constitute an event of default or prospective event of
default of the Corporate Guarantees (other than the corporate guarantee provided by
the Company for the ICBC Facilities) entitling the financial institutions to enforce the
security of under the Corporate Guarantees (other than the corporate guarantee
provided by the Company for the ICBC Facilities).

6. Insurance

6.1 Each Group Company has effected all insurances required by law to be effected by it
and which ought reasonably to have been effected over its business and assets for a
substantial part of its value and covering third party liability of each Group Company
having taken into account the nature of the business of the relevant Group Company,
the place in which it carries on business and the business of the Group as a whole.

6.2  All premiums due on the said policies have been paid, all the conditions of the said
policies have been performed and observed in all material respects in the place in
which the Group carries on business, and nothing has been done or has been omitted to
be done whereby any of the said policies has or may become void or voidable.

6.3  No claim is outstanding either by the insurer or the insured under any of the said
policies and no claim against any Group Company by any third party is outstanding in
respect of any risk covered by any of the policies or by any policy previously held by
any Group Company.

6.4  Any claim under any of the said policies or which would or might be required under
any of the said policies to be notified to the insurers has been duly made by the Group.
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7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8.1

8.2

Taxation

Each Group Company has complied in all material respects with all relevant and
applicable legal requirements relating to registration or notification for Taxation

purposes.

Each Group Company has:

(1)  paid all Taxation (if any) due to be paid, and if required, made sufficient
provision for Taxation before the date of this Agreement; and

(2)  taken all necessary steps to obtain any repayment of or relief from Taxation
available to it.

The returns for Taxation purposes which ought to have been made by or in respect of
each of the Group Companies in Hong Kong or any other part of the world, have been
duly made and all such returns are up to date, correct and on a proper basis and are not
the subject of any material dispute with the relevant Taxation, revenue or other
appropriate authorities.

The provisions (if any) included in the Management Accounts are sufficient to cover
all Taxation (as the case may be) for which any Group Company was then or might at
any time thereafter become or have become liable in respect of all periods ending on or
before the Management Accounts Date.

Save and except the case (IRD’s reference no.5/16256067), none of the Group
Companies is in dispute with any Taxation or revenue authority and, so far as the
Vendors are aware, no such dispute is pending or threatened.

Material transactions

Since the Management Accounts Date, save for as contemplated by this Agreement,
none of the Group Companies has:

(1) issued or repaid or agreed to issue or repay any share or loan capital;

(2) declared, made or paid any dividends or made any other distribution of capital
and no loan capital has been repaid in whole or in part; nor

(3) entered into any material transaction (including but not limited to any sale or
purchase of assets) or incurred any material liabilities otherwise than in
ordinary course of business.

Since the Management Accounts Date, none of the assets of any Group Company has
been depleted by any unlawful act on the part of any person and there has been no
material adverse change in the business, financial or trading positions or prospects of
any Group Company.
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9.1

9.2

9.3

94

9.5

9.6

10.

10.1

10.2

Employment arrangements

All contracts of service to which any Group Company is a party can be terminated by
it without payment of compensation (save as provided by legislation) by not more than
three months' nofice or less without compensation (other than compensation in
accordance with the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
or the relevant legislation.

No Group Company is a party to:
(1)  any agreement, arrangement or scheme for profit sharing with employees;

(2)  any collective bargaining or procedural or other agreement with any trades
union or similar association; or

(3) any provident fund other than pursuant to such agreement, arrangement, fund
or scheme whereby it is required by law to be a party.

Other than in respect of any scheme(s) as required under the Mandatory Provident
Funds Ordinance of Hong Kong or required by any applicable laws (including
Mainland China) or the medical benefits scheme made available by the Group to its
employees, no Group Company is under any legal liability or obligation or a party to
any agreement, arrangement, scheme, fund, ex-gratia arrangement or promise to pay
pensions, gratuities, retirement annuities, benefits, periodical sums, or any other
payment or compensation (whether or not legally enforceable) in connection with
retirement, death or disability to or for any of ifs past or present officers or employees
or their relatives or dependants; and all payment/contribution required to be made
and/or obligation required to be observed by the Group Company has been duly
paid/made/complied with by the relevant Group Company.

Particulars of all beneficial loans or other benefits in kind enjoyed by any director of
any Group Company have been Disclosed.

None of the Group Companies is under any obligation (whether actual or contingent)
to any former employee and no tax, levy, contribution or payment in respect of any
former employee is outstanding or disputed.

None of the Group Companies has given any guarantee or assumed any obligations in
relation to the employees of any other person.

Leased properties

Save as Disclosed, no Group Company has any interests of whatever nature in any
property whether situated in Hong Kong or elsewhere.

All covenants, obligations, conditions or restrictions imposed upon the each member
of the Group under its respective tenancy agreement(s) (the “Tenancy Agreement(s)”)
have been duly and promptly observed and performed and there has been no breach by
the each member of the Group's landlords of such covenants, obligations, conditions or
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restrictions or other obligations to which any such landlords are bound.

10.3 All rent and other charges payable under the Tenancy Agreement(s) have been
promptly paid as and when due and no rent has been paid in advance of the due date
for payment and any consents required for the grant of the Tenancy Agreement(s) have
been obtained from the mortgagee (if any).

10.4 The respective parties to the Tenancy Agreement(s) have observed and performed all
the terms and conditions therein and with all notices, applicable obligations,
requirements, statutes, rules, orders, directives, regulations, bye-laws and other
relevant legislation, with respect to such property, whether statutory or imposed by any
competent government authority, and so far as the Group is aware after making all
reasonable enquiries there are no disputes or outstanding or expected claims in these
agreements and there are no circumstances giving rise to such disputes or claims.

10.5 All leases and tenancies and all agreements (including the Tenancy Agreement(s)) for
lease and tenancies and all options for renewal of leases and tenancies to which the any
Group Company is a party were on terms negotiated at arm's length.

11. Litigation

11.1 Save the case of Panorama Distributions Company Limited versus Beta Film GmbH &
Co. Vertriebsgesellschaft and Beta Film GmbH in the District Court of Munich 1,
Germany as disclosed in the prospectus dated 30 April 2002 for the initial public
offerings of the Shares, no Group Company is a party to any outstanding litigation,
arbitration, prosecutions or other legal proceedings or hearings before any statutory,
regulatory or governmental body, department, board of agency or to any material
disputes or to or the subject of any investigation by any authority in the place where
the business of such Group Company is conducted.

11.2  Save the case of Panorama Distributions Company Limited versus Beta Film GmbH &
Co. Vertriebsgesellschaft and Beta Film GmbH in the District Court of Munich I , no
litigation, arbitration, prosecution or other legal proceedings, hearings or
investigations are threatened or pending either by or against any Group Company and
there are no facts or circumstances, so far as the Vendors are aware, which might give
rise to any such proceeding, investigation, hearing or to any dispute or to any payment.

11.3 There are no unfulfilled or unsatisfied judgments or court orders against any Group
Company.

11.4 No Group Company has manufactured, sold, supplied or traded products which were,
are or will become, in any material respect, harmful, unsafe, defective or unsuitable for
human consumption, or which do not comply in any material respect with any
warranties or representations, expressly or impliedly made by it or all applicable laws
govemning the manufacture, sale or supply of such products. No Group Company has
received any notice, warning, suspension notice, claim (including but not limited to
product liability claim) or complaint from any customer or government authority in
respect of any defects of the Group’s products.
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12.

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

Contracts and commitments

Since the Management Accounts Date, each Group Company has carried on its
business in the ordinary course and, save as mentioned in or as contemplated by this
Agreement, no Group Company has entered into any transaction or incurred amy
material liabilities except in the ordinary course of its day-to-day business and on an
arm’s length basis for full value.

There is no outstanding nor, save and except for such contracts or agreements which
may be entered into by any Group Company pursuant to this Agreement or in the
ordinary course of business, will there be outstanding at Completion with respect to
any Group Company:

(D any agreement (whether by way of guarantee, indemnity, warranty,
representation or otherwise) under which any Group Company is under any
actual or contingent material liability in respect of the obligations of any person
other than the relevant Group Company;

@) any sale or purchase option or similar agreement affecting any assets owned or
used by any Group Company (with a value in the books of account of such
Group Company in excess of HK$100,000) except those entered in the
ordinary course of day to day trading;

(3) any material agreement in excess of HK$100,000 entered into by any Group
Company otherwise than by way of bargain at arm’s length; and

(4) any joint venture agreements, agency agreements or any form of agreement
whatsoever which entitles any person to bind any Group Company
contractually, to settle, negotiate or compromise any accounts or claims or to
collect, receive or share in any balances or sums payable to any Group
Company save in the ordinary course of business.

No Group Company has received any formal notice in writing to repay under any
agreement relating to any borrowing from banks or financial institutions (or
indebtedness in the nature of borrowing from banks or financial institutions) which is
repayable on demand and which exceeds an aggregate amount of HK$100,000.

Save in the ordinary course of business, no Group Company is under any obligation, or
party to any contract, which cannot readily be fulfilled or performed by it on time and
without undue or unusual expenditure of money or effort and which is material in the
context of the Group’s business as a whole.

To the best knowledge of the Vendors, no party to amy contractually binding
agreement or arrangement with or under an obligation to any Group Company is in
default under it, being a default which would be material in the context of such Group
Company's financial or trading position and, so far as the Vendors are aware, there are
no circumstances likely to give rise to such a default.

Save for the ICBC Facilities, no Group Company is in default of any material respect
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12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

under any agreement or obligation to which it is party or in respect of any other
obligations or restrictions binding upon it, and if there is such default, the aggregate
amount of the loss and/or damages arising therefrom will not exceed HK3$20 million.

In respect of each Group Company, there are no outstanding contracts, engagements or
Jiabilities, whether quantified or disputed, save for (i) as shown in the Management
Accounts or (i) entered into in the ordinary course of each Group Company's day to
day business operations.

With respect to each of the Group Companies there are no:

(1)  (save and except the ICBC Facilities) contractual arrangements between such
Group Company and any party (including but not limited to financiers of the
Group) which will or may be legally terminated as a result of the execution or
completion of this Agreement, and if any of such contractual arrangements are
terminated, the aggregate amount of the loss and/or damages arising therefrom
will not exceed HK$20 million; or

(2) liabilities for any statutory or governmental levy or charge other than for
Taxation provision for which has been made in the Management Accounts; or

(3) (save in the ordinary course of business) powers of attorney or other authorities
(express or implied) which are still outstanding or effective to or in favour of
any person to enter into any contract or commitment or to do anything on its
behalf; or

(4) agreements or arrangements entered into by it otherwise than by way of bargain
at arm’s length; or

(5) (save the tenancy agreements set out in item nos.(1) to (4) in Part A of
Schedule 4) contracts or arrangements between itself and the parties hereto or
their Associates other than contracts in the ordinary course of their day to day
trading operations or business.

Other than in the ordinary course of its business, none of the Group Companies is a
party to or bound by any partnership or joint venture or profit sharing or voluntary
association or other similar agreement for the conduct of any business.

Other than in the ordinary course of its business, none of the Group Companies is a
party to any agreement, transaction, obligation, commitment, understanding,

arrangement or liability in which:

(a) is incapable of complete performance in accordance with its terms within six
months after the date on which it was entered into or undertaken;

(b) cannot readily be fulfilled or performed by the member of the Group on time
without undue or unusual expenditure of money and effort;
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15.

(c) involves or is likely to involve obligations, restrictions, expenditure or receipts
of an unusual, onerous or exceptional nature;

(d) is a contract with any trade union or body or organisation representing the
Group's employees; or

(€) in any way restricts the Group's freedom to carry on the whole or any part of its
business in any part of the world in such manner as it thinks fit.

Intellectual Property

As far as the Vendors are aware, the carrying of the business of the Group in the
ordinary and usual course as at present does not and will not infringe any intellectual

property rights of any third party.

To the best of the knowledge of the Vendors, all rights of, title to, benefits in, interests
under and other Intellectual Property Rights of any films, movies, productions or
entertainments in any nature created by, acquired by or licensed to any Group
Company (collectively the “Entertainments”) are valid and subsisting solely and
beneficially owned by the respective Group Company; and are not subject to any
Encumbrance or any agreement to give or create any Encumbrance except the
production of a film named “One Hour Papa”™ which is subject to the security in respect
of the facility issued by CITIC Ka Wah Bank to PDCL and except any Encumbrance
created in the ordinary course of business.

To the best of the knowledge of the Vendors, the use, distribution, sale and sub-license
of any of the Entertainments will not infringe the rights of any third parties or
contravene any applicable laws and regulations where such use, distribution, sale and
sub-license take place or the terms of the agreements to which the Entertainments are

subject to.

Insolvency

No order has been made or petition presented or resolution passed for the winding up
of any Group Company, nor has any distress, execution or other process been levied
against any material part of the property or undertaking of any Group Company or
action taken to repossess goods in the possession of any Group Company.

No steps have been taken for the appointment of an administrator or receiver of any
material part of the property or undertaking of any Group Company.

No floating charge created by any Group Company has crystallised and there are no
circumstances likely to cause such a floating charge to crystallise.

Save in relation to the ICBC Facilities and those facilities relating to the Corporate
Guarantees, none of the Group Companies has made or proposed any arrangement or

composition with its creditors or any class of its creditors.

Trading and business
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15.1 Each of the Group Companies has conducted its business in all material respects in
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations of Hong Kong and all relevant
foreign jurisdiction and there is no order, decree or judgment of any court or any
governmental agency of Hong Kong or of any relevant foreign country outstanding
against any member of the Group or which may have an adverse effect upon a material
part of the assets or business of any member of the Group.

152  All necessary licences, consents, permits and authorisations (public and private) have
been obtained by each member of the Group to enable each member of the Group to
carry on its business effectively in the places and in the manner in which such business
is now carried on and all such licences, consents, permits and authorisations are valid
and subsisting and the Vendors know of no reason why any of them should be
suspended, cancelled or revoked or should not be renewed or reissued upon or prior to
their expiry.

15.3  Since the Management Accounts Date:

(1)  the business of each Group Company has been continued in the ordinary and
normal course; and

(2) no legal proceedings have been instituted against any Group Company for
failing to pay its creditors and are outstanding as at the date of this Agreement.

15.4 The principal business of the Group is a comprehensive entertainment program
provider that is engaged primarily in film production and production, marketing
distribution, licensing and sub-licensing of films, television and video programs in
video compact disc and digital video disc formats for home entertainment in Hong
Kong, Macau, Mainland China and other Asian regions, including Taiwan, South
Korea, Singapore, Thailand, Malaysia, and the Philippines, through its extensive
distribution network.

15.5 To the best of the knowledge of the Vendors, neither any Group Company nor any of
their officers, agents or employees (during the course of their duties in relation to such
Group Company) have committed, or omitted to do, any act or thing the commission
or omission of which is, or could be, in contravention of any ordinance, order,
regulation, enactment, statute or the like in Hong Kong or elsewhere which:-
(1) is punishable by fine or other penalty;

(2) any Group Company is vicariously liable for;

(3) in the objective standard of a reasonable man will bring the Group into
disrepute; and

4) will materially and adversely affect the Group’s financial or trading position.

16. Miscellaneous
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16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

16.7

16.8

All representations, warranties and undertakings contained in the foregoing provisions
of this Schedule shall be deemed to be repeated immediately before Completion and to
relate to the facts then existing.

None of the Group Companies has committed any breach in a material respect of any
statutory provision, order, bye-law or regulation binding upon it or of any provision of
its memorandum of association, bye-laws or articles of association.

All information contained in this Agreement was when given true and accurate in all
material respects and there is no material fact or material matter which has not been
disclosed, which may render any such information or documents untrue, inaccurate or
misleading in any material respect at the date of this Agreement.

Each of the Vendors has full legal capacities to enter into this Agreement and to
exercise their respective rights and perform their respective obligations hereunder and
this Agreement will, when executed by each of them, be a legal, valid and binding
agreement on each of them and enforceable in accordance with the terms thereof.

The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by the Vendors does not
and will not violate in any respect any applicable provision of (i) any law or regulation
or any order or decree of any governmental authority, agency or court of the Hong
Kong or any jurisdiction in which it is incorporated or resides or any part thereof
prevailing as at the date of this Agreement and as at Completion; (ii) the laws and
documents incorporating and constituting the Company prevailing as at the date of this
Agreement and as at Completion; or (iii) any mortgage, contract or other undertaking
or instrument to which it is a party or which is binding upon it or any of its assets, and
does not and will not result in the creation or imposition of any encumbrance on any of
its assets pursuant to the provisions of any such mortgage, contract or other
undertaking or instrument.

The information set out in the recitals, the Schedules and the Exhibits is frue, accurate
and complete in all material respects

Save as Disclosed and to the best knowledge of the Vendors, no consent, licence,
approval or authorization of or filing or registration with or other requirement of any
governmental department authority or agency in the Cayman Islands or any
jurisdiction in which the Vendors reside or any part thereof is required by the Vendors
in relation to the valid execution, delivery or performance of this Agreement (or to
ensure the validity or enforceability thereof) and the sale of the Sale Shares.

Save as contemplated under this Agreement and to the best knowledge of the Vendors,
no waivers, consents or approvals of any relevant governmental or regulatory
authorities (including, but not limited to, the Stock Exchange and the SFC) or other
relevant third parties in Hong Kong or elsewhere are required or appropriate or are
relevant to, the entry into and the implementation and completion of this Agreement
and no filings with any governmental regulatory authorities or other relevant third
parties in Hong Kong or elsewhere are required or appropriate for the entering into and
the implementation of this Agreement other than filing obligations under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance of Hong Kong; no waiting periods are required under the laws
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of Hong Kong or any other relevant jurisdictions in relation thereto.

Previous Announcements

With respect to all the Previous Announcements, all statements of fact contained
therein were true and correct in all material respects as at the respective dates of such
Previous Announcements and not misleading in any material respect and all
expressions of opinion or intention contained therein were made on reasonable
grounds and were truly and honestly held by the directors of the Company and were
fairly based and there were no other facts known to the directors of the Company the
omission of which would make any such statement or expression in any of the
Previous Announcements misleading in any material respect
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SCHEDULE 3

ADDRESS AND FACSIMILE NUMBERS FOR COMMUNICATIONS

Name

AFAL

Mr. Allan Fung

The Purchaser

Mr. Chin

Address

8th Floor, Mita Centre, 552-566 Castle
Peak Road, Kwai Chung, Hong Kong

8th Floor, Mita Centre, 552-566 Castle
Peak Road, Kwai Chung, Hong Kong

Unit G, 10/F., Seabright Plaza, 9-23 Shell
Street, North Point, Hong Kong

Unit G, 10/F., Seabright Plaza, 9-23 Shell
Street, North Point, Hong Kong
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Facsimile no.

(852) 2366 9288

(852) 2366 9288

(852) 2979 0511

(852) 2979 0511



SCHEDULE 4

PART A

PARTICULARS OF LEASED PROPERTIES OF THE GROUP

Tenancy agreement dated 1 April 2006 entered into between Players Pictures Company
Limited and PDCL for a period from 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007 (both dates
inclusive) in respect of Units 1-4, 8% Floor and Car Parking Space No. 1 on 2™ Floor
of Mita Centre, Nos. 552-566 Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories.

Tenancy agreement dated 1 April 2006 entered into between Metropolis
Communications Limited and PDCL for a period from 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007
(both dates inclusive) in respect of Units 5 and 6, 8% Floor of Mita Centre, Nos. 552~
566 Castle Peak Road, Xwai Chung, New Territories.

Tenancy agreement dated 1 April 2006 entered into between Brilliant Business
Limited and PDCL for a period from 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007 (both dates
inclusive) in respect of Units 7 and 8, 8™ Floor of Mita Centre, Nos. 552-566 Castle
Peak Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories.

Tenancy agreement entered into between 1 April 2006 Sunny Fancy Limited and
PDCL for a period from 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007 (both dates inclusive) in
respect of Units 9 — 12, 8" Floor of Mita Centre, Nos. 552-566 Castle Peak Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories.

Tenancy agreement dated 7 August 2005 entered into between Lam Yuen, Ko Kit Yu
and PDCL for a period of two years and 1 month commencing from 1 June 2005 to 30
June 2007 (both days inclusive) in relation to Workspace on 4™ Rloor, Kam Fu Factory
Building (Block D), 30-38 Lam Tin Street, Kwai Chung, Hong Kong.

Tenancy agreement dated 15 October 2005 entered into between Fook Yee Hing
Investment Company Limited for itself and as agent for Golden Return Company
Limited and PDCL for a period of two years from 1 October 2005 to 30 September
2007 (both days inclusive) in respect of Flat B on 4™ Fioor of Fook Yee Garden, 278
Prince Edward Road West, Kowloon.

Tenancy agreement dated 25 May 2006 entered into between Ever Eagle Company
Limited as landlord and Punch Pictures Company Limited as tenant for a period of 3
years from 10 June 2006 to 9 June 2009 in respect of ZEVFEE R ET0-38R e THEK

EoFiE.

An oral tenancy agreement entered into between F¥s H LB R TR IRAH =
£34NE] as tenant and HYEE S HFR/A T as landlord for a period of six months from
1 April 2006 to 30 September 2006 in respect of St —EY3357 1 1EEED
15 TERIS).
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9. A licence agreement dated 15 October 2005 entered into between Fook Yee Hing
Investment Company Limited for itself and as agent for Golden Return Company
Limited and Panorama Distributions Company Limited in respect of Carpark Space
No. 17 & 18 on Basement of Fook Yee Garden, 278 Prince Edward Road West,

Kowloon.

PART B

PARTICULARS OF THE INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY OF THE GROUP

Nature and description

A BANORGM
® EARIRGMEG

Coumntry Expiry Date  Trade Mark Owner

HongKong 31 August  Panorama
2008 Entertainment
Company Limited

Hong Kong 31 Angnst  Panorama
2008 Entertainment
Company Limited

Hong Kong 13 April SERNZITHERAE
2015
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Other remarks

Class 6

Videotapes, video
compact discs (VCD),
digital versatile discs
(DVD), and film for
motion picture

Class 9

Videotapes, video
compact discs (VCD),
digital versatile discs
(DVD)}, and film for
motion picture

AR 9
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SCHEDULE 5

DRAFT RESIGNATION LETTER

Date:

To: The Board of Directors
Panorama International Holdings Limited
8th Floor, Mita Centre
552-566 Castle Peak Road
Kwai Chung
Hong Kong

Dear Sirs,

1, [name], of [address], hereby unconditionally and irrevocably resign as [director/company
secretary/qualified accountant] of Panorama International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) with effect from

1 confirm that T have no claim whatsoever against the Company or any of its subsidiaries
whether by way of compensation, remuneration, severance payments, expenses, damages or
otherwise and there is no agreement or arrangement outstanding under which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries has or could have any obligation to me whether now or in the future.

I hereby waive, release and forever discharge the Company and each of its subsidiaries or of
its direct or indirect holding companies against all actions, proceedings, claims, demands,
costs and expenses which I may now have or would have had but for the execution of this
deed.

SIGNED, SEALED and DELIVERED )
by ] )
)

in the presence of:

Confirmed and accepted. We confirm that we have no claim against you whether by way of
compensation, remuneration, severance payments, expenses, damages or otherwise and there
is no agreement or arrangement outstanding under which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries has or could have any obligation to you whether now or in the future.

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED )

by )
For and on behalf of
Panorama International Holdings Limited

Name:
Title:
Date:
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SCHEDULE 6

PARTICULARS OF CORPORATE GUARANTEES

Name of Description of  Amount of facility Corporate Guarantee
Bank(s) facility

Standard Banking Total facility limit of A corporate guarantee executed by Panorama
Chartered facilities to HK$13,000,000 including International ~ Holdings  Limited  for
Bank Panorama HK$13,000,000 plus interest and other
Distributions 1) HK$3,500,000 for current  charges
Company account overdraft 2)
Limited on 20 HK$4,500,000 for trade
June 2006 finance; and
(variation to
existing 3) Term Loan of
facilities) HK$5,000,000
Dah Sing Banking Comprising: A corporate gnarantee executed by Panorama
Bank facilities to International Holdings Ltd. for
Panorama OD — HK 2,500,000 HK$10,800,000
Distributions
Company Instalment Loan —
Limited on 11 HEK$3,591,242.20
January 2006
(variation of Corporate Card Limited —
existing HK$300,000
banking
facilities) Instalment Loan (New) —
HK$2,000,000
Bank letter of guarantee —
HK$2,000,000
Citic Ka QOverdraft Overdraft facility vp to A corporate guarantee from Panorama
Wah Bank  facilities to HX$500,000 International Holdings Ltd for repayment of
Panorama principal amount up to the extent of
Distributions HK$500,000 and accrued interest and default
Co.Ltd. on 29 interest thereon and all other costs and
November 2005 expenses
Citic Ka Facilities to Tnstalment loan of total limit A corporate guarantee from Panorama
Wah Bank  Paporama of HK$4,750,000 under the ~ International Holdings Ltd. for repayment of
Distributions Film Guarantee Fund Scheme  principal amount up to the extent of all monies

Co.Ltd. on25  operate by the Government and accrued interest and default interest and
- January 2006 of the Hong Kong Special all other costs and expenses

for new file Administrative Region

named “One (“HKSARG”) for the sole

Hour Papa” purpose of meeting the

project additional funds being

development standby working capital to

(the “File match with the recent new

Project”) file named “One Hour Papa”

DBS Bank  Banking Comprising: The bank’s standard form guarantee and
51
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Hang Seng
Bank

Bank of
East Asia

ORIX Asia
Limited

ORIX Asia
Limited

Name of
Bank(s)

Industrial
and
Commercial
Bank of
China
(Asia)
Limited
(ICBC)

facilities for
Panorama
Distributions
Company
Limited on 31
March 2005

Banking
facilities to
Panorama
Distributions
Company
Limited on 6
November 2002

Credit facilities
to Panorama
Distributions
Company
Limited on 24
May 2005

Uncommitted,
non-revolving
term loan
facility to
Panorama
Distributions
Co. Ltd.

Term loan to
Panorama
Distributions
Company
Limited

Description of
facility

Banking
facilities to
Panorama
Distributions
Company
Limited

Overdraft ([) HK$1,500,000
Overdraft (IT) HK$500,000

Instalment Loan
HK$2,000,000

Overdraft facility on current
account No. 235-104635-001
in an aggregate amount of
HK$7,000,000

Comprising

O/D limit — HK$2,000,000

indernmity for HK$4,500,000 plus interest and
other charges duly executed by Panorama
International Holdings Limited

A Deed of Guarantee in favour of the bank for
HK$7,000,000 to be executed by Panorama
International Holdings Limited

Corporate guarantee signed by Panorama
International ~ Holdings Limited for
HK$4,000,000 covering the credit facilities

Term loan limit —

HK$2,000,000

HK$1,000,000 A guarantee executed by Panorama
International Holdings Limited and Patora
Optical Industries Ltd

HK$1,500,000 Guarantee executed by Panorama International
Holdings Limited for HK$1,500,000

THE ICBC FACILITIES

Amount of facility Corporate Guarantee

Facilities A corporate guarantee to be executed by
Panorama International Holdings Limited for

OD Facilities of HK$4,400,000

HK$2,000,000

Instalment Loan of
HK$2,400,000

Facilities III
All existing facilities and/or

modifications thereto and/or
other facilities and other
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Hiabilities whether contingent
or to be crystalised under any
guarantee given by the
borrower jointly/severally in
our favour whether for
securing or guaranteeing
against the borrower’s
liabilities or third party
liabilities and/or other
liabilities as may be incurred
and/or granted or to be granted
by the bank at its discretion
without limits

Note:

Mr. Allan Fung and AFAL have undertaken to maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 50% ownership and
management control in the Company and to remain as the single largest shareholder of the Group; and Mr. Allan
Fung has undertaken to remain as the chairman of the Group and be actively involved in the management and
business of the Group. Failure of either of the above will constitute an event of default under the ICBC

Facilities.

53



SCHEDULE 7

PARTICULARS OF THE OPTIONS

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company

Name of Grantee

1 Allan Fung

2 Janet Fung

3 James Fung

4 Simon Au

5 William Lo

6 Jacqueline Fung

7 Johnny Chan

8 Stephen Chau

9Chou Yuk Sim
10Luk Sheung Kwan
11 Nigan Kwan Lok
12 So Oi Kwan
13 Wong Hau Yan
14 Wong Yin King
15 Yuen Siu Fung
16 Jor Man Wai
17 Lee Ping Keung

Total

7,000,000.00 -
6,000,000.00
6,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,300,000.00
500,000.00
500,000.00
500,000.00
500,000.00
50,000.00
950,000.00
500,000.00
100,000.00
100,000.00
100,000.00
450,000.00
200,000.00
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Number of underlying Shares

Pool A Options

4,000,000.00
4,000,000.00
4,000,000.00
1,000,000.00
1,800,000.00
0.00

0.00

0.00
300,000.00
0.00
500,000.00
300,000.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

6.00

0.00

Pool B Options

3,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
1,000,000.00
500,000.00
500,000.00
500,000.00
500,000.00
200,000.00
50,000.00
450,000.00
200,000.00
100,000.00
100,000.00
100,000.00
450,000.00
200,000.00
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SCHEDULE 8

DRAFT UNDERTAKING OF THE GRANTEES OF THE OPTIONS

DRAFT UNDERTAKING OF 2 0y AN s S e e
Date: [o]

Nice Hill Investments Limited (“Nice Hill”)
Attention: The Board of Directors

Dear Sirs,

Undertaking regarding Pool A options granted under the pre-IPO share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) adopted by Panorama International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
on 25 April 2002

I, the undersigned, being the holder of outstanding Pool A options (the “Options”) fo
subscribe for an aggregate [fotal number of shares) shares (“Shares™) of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company granted to me under the Scheme, hereby unconditionally and
irrevocably undertake to you that (1) I will not exercise any of the Options from the date
hereof up to and including the close of the general offer for all (i) the Shares; and (i1) all
outstanding options in Shares (the “Option Offer”) (other than that held by Nice Hill or
parties acting in concert with it) to be made by Nice Hill in accordance to the Hong Kong
Code on Takeovers and Mergers pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement of [date] in
respect of 251,671,500 Shares and made between Allan Fung Assets Limited and Mr. Fung
Yu Hing Allan as vendors, Nice Hill as purchaser; and (2) I will accept the Option Offer.

Yours faithfully,
Signed, sealed and delivered

(o]

ss y



THE VENDORS

SIGNED by

FUNG YU HING ALLAN

for and on behalf of

ALLAN FUNG ASSETS LIMITED
in the presence of.

SIGNED by
FUNG YU HING ALLAN

in the presence of:

THE PURCHASER

SIGNED by

CHIN WAY KEUNG RICHARD
for and on behalf of

NICE HILL INVESTMENTS
LIMITED

in the presence of:
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EXHIBIT A

AUDITED ACCOUNTS
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70 THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
PANORAMA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Istands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 45 to 93 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES CF THE DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial
statemants which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinien, besed on our
audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinicn solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accouniants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It afso includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgments made by the Directors in the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
gppropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

CCIF

CCIF CPA LIMITED
37/ Hennessy Centre
500 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay Hong Kong

HEFEREZERERAT
ZRER
(%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ:’i@iz%‘ﬁéﬂﬁ)

ZM‘%IEMTET:FX%&?THA%:IS& Z03EE

EXFEREAZEHRASENMBAR -
BESRGHAHENS
ESAARARURERRTHABRS - EF
HESHERRY  ESSERBRRSED
THEE °

FOIMBEERSATERIENER R
CHESEREBUNER  EEAEERR
BE c MABKSHAGHEAERAR - F17
FERERERNEREAREATRERER
BE-

BRHER
AIRRBREACHHLTRANEERAE
BEGERIE - SRERSENRENRE

’r’iﬁﬁa‘iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%‘n%%&ﬁmgﬁ%%%%
 TAEEHEERANESHERRERN

&%gxﬁﬁmAa~%ﬁmwaﬁﬁmg
ge RATR ESRENARER RET
ERERYRALATHSAHER -




[N

RTINS

;s

Fil 44

B e E5
] gi:
Eg @t

Auditoré’ Repbrt
BEBHES

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as
to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements, We believa that our audit provides a reasonable basis for

our opinion.

OPINION

In ous opinion the financial statements give 2 true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 March,
2006 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then
ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

€ U Wtd

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 June, 20906

Choi Man On
Practising Certificate Number P02410

Panorama International Holdings Limited - ANNUAL REPORT 2006
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EARBE

For the

g2

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

Profit from operations
Finance Cosis

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Attributable to:

Minority [nterest

Zarnings per share
— Basic

— Diluted

5:8 45 E:F i
EHEEERERAT - —ETRESER it
“consolidated Income Statement
year ended 31 March, 2006
pEAESAS+—BLEE
2006 2005
—EERE —EETHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
B TET FEL
ERE 6 83,901 79,986
HERSE (55,599) (46,916)
EF 28,302 33,070
Hip@EWA 893 285
BITRE (1,022) {415)
THREX (19,032) (19,206}
EHE2mE (3,247) {1,975)
Impairment loss recognised in FRIREZEER
respect of film rights REBR - (3,617}
P g 8 5,894 8,142
BERE 9 (2,512) (1,337
B B 5 3,382 5,805
HE 13 (932) {1,662)
TEFEEF 2,450 5,143
B

Equity holders of the Company EATEHRBTEA 2,305 4,384
SR REER 145 749
2,450 5,143

BERER
- EX 14 HK0.57 cent® {il HK1.09 centsi i
— 5 14 HKO0.56 cent? il HK1.06 centsiE il
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At 31 March, 2006
BoBEREZR=+—8H

MON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Film rights
Films in progress
Trademark
Payment for acquisition of film rights

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Amount due from a related company
Pledged bank deposits
Bank balances and cash

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payzbles
Amounts due o related cormnpanies
Taxation payable
Obligations under finance leases
- due within one year
Bank and other borrowings
~ due within one year

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payable
Obligations under finance leases
- due after one year
Bank and other:borrowings
- due after one year
Deferred tax liabilities

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

MINORITY INTERESTS
TOTAL EQUITY

Panorama lnfematlonal Hoidings Limited - ANNUAL REPORT 2006
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RBHBEEFE
BELERRDER

FERBAE

HE g ERE
mABORRE

- —EHEBZE R
BITREMEER

— —ERNBZEHR
BEHERE

BEXEBRERE
B A
BE

LERRER
ErndaE

Notes

#it

15
16

17

18
20
21

22
21
23

24

26
23

24
29

25

2006 _ 2005
—mEXE EEL T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE
4,898 1,402
72,461 66,149
793 490
15 30
2,066 1,334
80,233 69,405
22,377 22,209
26,853 35,804
6,537 520
8,218 10,127
6,796 5,441
70,781 74,801
37,716 37,492
3 1,594

105 384
430 503
27,187 25,370
65,441 £5,353
5,340 9,448
85,573 78,853
6,596 11,000
1,099 394
6,760 1,204
4,177 3,284
18,632 15,882
66,941 62,971
4,023 4023
56,173 52,348
60,196 56,371
6,745 6,600
66,941 62,871

rf;‘
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The financial statements on pages 45 to 93 were approved and
EEEHAREBENE REURTESRARES

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 June, 2006 and
are signed on its beiblf by:

Fung Yu Hing, Allan Leung Siu Kuen, la

EER R2PE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF Es




“Balance Sheet
gEAME

A1 31 March, 2006
A oger#=R=TE

NON-CURRENT ASSET
Interests in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS
Other raceivables
Bank balances

CURRENT LIABILITY
Other payables

' NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

ERBEE
RMBARZESR

nBEE
EfEUMRE
RITRER

REBRE
HuEIRE

it

wEAa

il

EZE

&

BXRER
B
=i

Notes

Kz

25
28

2006
ZRBEX

HK$000

FET

42,439

113

114

300
(186)

42,253

4,023
38,230

42,253

L ]

2005
—®en%
HK3'000
FET

42,541

113

114

377

{263)

42,278

4,023
38,255

42,278

Fung Yu Hing, Allan
REW
DIRECTOR

[

=

Leung Siu Kuen, Janet
RL i
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For the year ended 31 March, 2006
BE-RERESR=THERE

A1 Apri, 2004

Exchange differences arsing from
franslation of operations cutside
Hong Kang and gain not recogised
in the consofidated income statement

ssue of shares on exercise of

share cpfions
Peolit for the year

At 1 Apt, 2005

Cpening adjustment for he adoplion
of HKAS 38

As restated

Profit for the year

AL 31 March, 2006

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the group reorganisation (the “Group Reorganisation”) to
rationalise the group structure in preparation of the listing of the
Shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, and the nominal value of
the Company's shares issued in exchange.

R-%ZmEMA-A

AlEERHIBERE
RAZEERELZE
RERRARREAN
HxTE2INA

RERERERTRG

ERER

R-EZRENA-A

ARBEREHENZR
2B

ok,
=21

EREH

RoBERESA=T-H
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Atfributable to equity holders of the Company

EARRBHEARS
Share Share Special  Translation Retained Minority Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits Total intarast equity
iz RAEEE hiEs BERE REzd g1 sukxEs EREE
HKS 000 HES000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HES 060 HK§000 HKS 600 HK$ 000
TER TEL Tz TER TR TER TER FEL
fnote 25]
(Ri2)
406 12937 10,440 3 24,494 51,94 5,851 51,185
- - - 30 - 30 - 30
7 16 - - - 3 - 3
- - - - 4394 439 7149 5143
4023 12,953 10,440 51 25,338 56,311 6,600 5291
- - - - 1520 1520 - 1520
4053 12,853 10,440 87 30,408 57,80 6,600 64,491
- - - - 2,309 2305 145 2450
4023 12,953 10440 81 1M 60,196 6,745 66,941

ZEBTBURENREAEELATRBERRA
lEFE T AEEETUEEEERBrR2BEA
(TeEELANF  FAAKEZ2HBLAZRERE
B RERRRFRGBTERAZEEZESR -




T,

T

BEHEERER

For the year ended 31 March, 2006
GE_BERE=RZT—H IEFEE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
lnterest income
Amortisation of film rights
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
interast and finance charge
impairment loss recognised
in respect of film rights
Bad debts writien off
Amortisation of trademark

Operating cash flow before
movements in working capital

Decrease (Increase) in inventories

Decrease (Increase) in trade and
other receivables

increase in trade and
other payables

Decrease in amounts due 1o
related companies

Nat cash generated from operations
Interest received
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
.Purchase of film rights
Purchase of property, plant
and equipment

Payment for acquisition of film rights

Decrease (Increzse) in pledged
bank deposits

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and eguipment

NET CASH USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

r"_cohséi’idat'eci Eash Flow S'tafem.ent.

BERE
B 1% 31k 7
BMATHEI(FHBE -
HEDE -BER
REZHE
F2 A
AR
WE - BERBBZNE

FERBARHA
FEREZERBRERSR

AR e
BEREH

RELEESEHNZ
BEBRSHE
FERE L ()
BHREMBERRERD
(#5n)
B REMENRE

# o
ENBEEQRNRERD

BEREREEFHE
B BB E
BERERFGH

EEREHERERE

REED
BERAIRE
BEHE  BERRE

BEFAFRERE
ZHEARLT
FRR S (Em)
LENE  BERBREMEIE

BEZDHRAREFE

2006
—EEANE
HK$'000
FET

3,382

(550)

(185)
27,132
2,055
2,512

135
15

34,496
532

8.816

224

{1,591)

42,477
185
(328)

42,334

{32,413)

{5.551)
(2.066)

1,909

550

(37.571)

2005
—EERE
HK$'000
FET

6,805

(122)
(30}
21,925

1,155
1,337

3,617

243
15

34,945
(2,138)

(8,866)
14,684
(4,223)
34,402

30
{278)

34,154

(32,043)

(749)
(1,334)

(30)

125

(34,031)
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é&nsoh’d&ted Cash F]ow S.ta-teh%énf

FEHERER
For the year ended 31 March, 2006
HETZTAFSAS+—HLEE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank loans raised
New finance lzases raised
(Advance) Repayment from
a related company
(Decrease) Increase in other payable
Repayment of bank and
other borrowings
Interest and finance charge paid
Repayment of obligations under
finance leases
Proceeds from issue of shares

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES '

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash
Bank overdrafts

BEED
FERITER
HETRARY
BELNH

(g ) E 48R
H b FE N FROE (4 )
HERTRAMEER

BEHEFERRER
BENREROARE

BTG AR

REZBABRZFE

RERRESHEDE M
B

FOzRERBALTEEY

FRZAERASEHEY

RERASEEVERDH

RITEBRRAS
RITEX

2006 2005
—EERE —FEEFRHF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET TFEx
14,821 2,500
1,369 653
(6,017) 528
(2.884) 2,000
(2,641 (2,938)
(2.512) (1,337)
(737) (1,134)
- 23
1,399 295
6,162 218
(17.234) (17,682)
_ 30
(11,072) (17.234) |
6,796 5,441
(17,868) (22,675)
(11,072) (17,234
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BEFEEZMNZE

Eor the year ended 31 March, 2006
HEE-FEAEZAST-ALFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange. its ultimate holding company is
Allan Fung Assets Limited, a company incorporated in the British

Virgin !slands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 35,

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARD

In the current year, the Group has adopted all of the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"),
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “new HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for
accounting period on or after 1 January, 2005. The adoption of
new HKFRSs did not result in substantial changes to the Group's
accounting policy except the followings:—

HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”

HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of minority interests and
other disclosures. Comparative figures have been restated
accordingly.

HKAS 32 “ Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation” and HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”

HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 established principles for disclosure,
presentation, recognition and measurement of financial

instruments, including non-derivative financial assets, non-
derivative financial liabilities and derivative instrumenis for
hedging activities. The Group has adopted HKAS 32 and HKAS
39 prospectively from 1 Apri, 2005,

—RER
ARATDRESESEMRIZERLERD
7 ARGEBZAYUERET - ERRZRA

BAREBRLBESEMAI 22 FAlzn Fung
Assets Limited =

ERTN—BREERAR - EHBORZER
BRI EE3S -

BAGITRENEEMFESER

REFE  ASECHANFTREEHALER
HEFRAEEOHIRETEEMBEREER
(IEEHBREER])  TEERHEY((FRET
HERDERREGARBSIRERMBEEGE
g ¥R-TTEF-A-BRZERENT
HBNER FAFERVRBREENERER
FEENESHBERHREARS  #TIERE

EESHRENSIRE I EREESRZ2FIRE
& UBRYFEBEES -

EBeEIERE¢RIE  BERE
FIIRESEtrERE3oRTeRMIA &R
BEtEl
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Nofes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March, 2006
SE—gEREIRA=THILEE

statements_of the Group.

Under HKAS 38, financial assets are classified as “financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss”, “availabie-for-sales financial
assets”, “loans and receivables”, or “held-to-maturity financial
assets”. “Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”,
“ available-for-sales financial asseis” are carried at fair value, with
changes in fair values recognised in the income statement and
equity respectively. “Loans and receivables” and "held-to-
maturity financial assets” are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method after initial recognition.

The adoption of HKAS 39 resulted in:

increase in retained earnings RERFE N
Incraase in finance cost B E A 22
Decrease in basic earning per share ERERBRTE L
Decrease in diluted earning per share FREREZFRD

HKFRS 2 “Share Based Payments”

The adoption of HKFRS 2 has resulted in a change in the
accounting policy for share based payments, Until 31 March,
2005 the provision of share options to employees did not result
in an expenses in the income statements. Effective on 1 April,
2005, the Group expenses the fair value of share options in the
income statement. Under the transitional provision, retrospective
treatment is required only in respect of share optiens granted
after 7 November, 2002 and had not yet vested on 1 April,
2005, The Group had no such options.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the
following Standards were in issue but not yet effective:

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures

Employee Benefits — Actuarial Gain
and Losses, Group Plans and
Disclosures

HKAS 19 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 {Amendment) The Fair Value Option

HKAS 38 and HKFRS 4 Financial Instruments: Recognition

{(Amendments) and Measurement and Insurance
Contracts — Financial Guarantes

Contracts
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures

The Directars anticipate that the adoption of these Standards in
future periods will have no material impact on the financial

Panorama international Holdings Limited «+ ANNUAL REPORT 2006
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2006 2005
—2BARF g 3 ingcS
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FEI
1,520 -

507 -

HK0.13 centiE L -
HKD.12 centiE I -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical

cost convention and in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Company
ordinance. The principal accounting policies adopted are as

follows:

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
staternents of the Company and its subsidiaries made up 1o 31

March each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany fransactions and balances within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance
sheet at cost less any identified impairmeant loss.

Recognition of revenue

has passed.

Income from exhibition of film and film distributions income are
recognised when the right to receive payment is established and
the amount can be measured reliably.

Sub-ficensing income is recognised on an accrual basis in
accordance with the terms of the underlying licence agreements.

[nterest income is accrued on a time basis by reference to the
pringipal outstanding and at the interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset o that asset’s
net carrying amouni.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title__
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEGENE

For the year ended 31 March, 2006
BE_FTRESA=ST-ALFEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight line method, at the following annual rates:

Leasehold improvements 10%
Furniture and fixtures 30%
Office equipment 30% -
Motor vehicles 30%

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset
is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income

statement.

Filen rights

Advances prepaid and paid by instalments under licensing
agreements for reproduction and distribution of audio-visual
products and for sub-licensing of film titles, in specific
geographical areas and time periods, are recorded as payment
for acquisition of film rights. Upon receipt of the master materials
of films, all required payments under the licensing agreements
are recorded as film rights. The balances payable under the
licensing agreements are recorded as liabilities.

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumnulated impairment losses.

The cost of film rights is amortised on a systematic basis over the
underlying licence periods, with reference to projecied revenues
from the relevant film right.

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any identified impairment
losses. Costs included all direct costs associated with the
production of films. Costs of films is transferred to film rights

upon completion.

3.

Panorama Infernational Holdings Limited - ANNUAL REPORT 2006
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for the year ended 31 March, 2006
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Trademark

Trademark represents licence fee paid for the use of trademark
and is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
identified impairment losses. The cost of trademark is amortised
on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life.

Inventories

Inventories are stated st the lower of cost and net realisable
vatue. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

lmpairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment foss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the assetis reduced 1o
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

3. EEEHEE@®
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Notes to the Financial Statements
HEEENE

For the year ended 31 March, 2008
BE_TTREZASTBLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. EEEHEE®

Taxation
Income iax expenses represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of income or expenses that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
income statement itams that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for ali taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised 1o the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and lizbilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in suhsidiaries, except whers
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asseis is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recoverad.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settied or the asset
rezlised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income
statement, except when it relates to itemns charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt

with in equity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2006

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the
lease transfer subsiantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets concerned to the Group. Asseis held under finance
leases are capitalised at their fair values at the date of acquisition.
The corresponding liability to the lessor, net of interest charges,
is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.
Finance costs, which represent the difference between the total
leasing commitments and original principal at the inception of

. the respective leases value of the assets acquired, are charged to

the income statement over the period of the relevant lease so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.

All other leases are classified as operating leases and the annual
rentals are charged to the fncorne statement on a straight line
basis over the relevant lease term.

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme,
which contribution is matched by employzes.

The employees of the subsidiary in Singapore are members of a
state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
government of Singapore. The subsidiary is required to contribute
certain percentage of their payroll costs, depending on the age
of individual employee and its nationality, to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make
the specified contributions.

Share-based empioyee compensation

All share-based payment arrangements granted after 7 November
2002 are recognised in the consofidated financial statements.
The Group operates equity settled share-based compensation
plans for remuneration of its employees.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FEFHER &

Share-based employee compensation (continued)

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of any
share-based compensation are measured at their fair values.
These are indirectly determined by reference to the share options
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date and excludes
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets).

All share-based compensation is ultimately recognised as an
expense in income statement with a corresponding credit 1o
additional paid-in capital, net of deferred tax where applicable.
If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the expense
is allocated over the vesting period, based on the best avaitable
estimate of the number of share options expected to vest. Non-
market vesting conditions are inciuded in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected o become exercisable.
Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is any indication that
the number of share options expected to vest differs from
previous estimates. No adjustment to expense recognised in prior
periods is made if fewer share options ultimately are exercised
than originally estimated.

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs up to the nominal value of
the share issuad are realiocated to share capital with any excess
being recorded as additional paid-in capital.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are
initially recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are re-translated at
the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Profits and losses
arising on exchange are included in the income statement.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
operation outside Hong Kong are translated at the exchange
rates prevailing on the bafance sheet date. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rate for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and
transferred to the Group’s translation reserve. Such translation
differences are recognised as income or as expenses in the year
in which the operation is disposed of.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FE=HRE &)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when 2 present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the cbligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance
sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the income statement.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at cost, being the fair
value of the consideration given and except for financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss,
including transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition.

Financial assets
The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and
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¥ receivables. The accounting policy adopted is set out below. ey ettFgamT .
Loans and receivables By
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with BEREN R EARAENRS RN IEETIES
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active BB ENROEfTETESREE - YI5R
market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to iniiial MEreREED  BERUEKZE(REEK
recognition, loans and receivables including accounts receivable, BEX . SR ENENWZEREKEEAD
= time deposits, other receivables and amount due from a related ZE) NEAERHEEBE IR AREIDE
company are carried &t amortised cost using the effective interest R ESENE - S EEENEESREERE
method, less any identified impairment losses. An impairment ERE BEEEeEWSEhEE . EEE
loss is recognised in the income statement when there is objective ENEEERNSVANERANSYBRATES
: evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the ERECTHEENBEREIHNEEYE - &
= ditference between the asset's carrying amount and the present BEHE  MREAETNODSENENTE L8
i— va.]u-e of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the REBETARLENEESRE  EESEY
& original effective’interest rate. Impairment Josses are reversed in HEE PZEETESRZEEEREERRE
subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable HERNERBTEZEEERTYHRESERE -
amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
g impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that the

carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabllities and equity

Financial iabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified according to the substance of the contraciual
arrangements entered into and the definition of & financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
lizbilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below. ’

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabitities at fair value through profit or loss has two
sub-categories, including financial liabilities held for trading and
those designated at fair value through profit os loss on initial
recognition. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities include trade and other payables, bank
and other borrowings which fall within the category of other
financial liabitities. These financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liguid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three menths when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the balznce sheet, cash and cash balances
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

3.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY 4.
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies which
are describad in note 3, management has made the following
judgements that have most significant effect of the amounts
recognised in the financial statements which are dealt with
below,

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The provision policy for bad and doubtful debts of the Group is
based on the evaluation of colleciability and.aging analysis of
the debts and on managements’ judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is reguired in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each customer.
If the financial conditions of customers of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required.

Impairment loss of film rights

The Group evaluates whether film rights have suffered any
impairment loss whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the film rights may not be
recoverable, in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
set out above. The recoverable amounts of cash generating units
have been determined based on value in use calculations. These
calculstions require the use of estimates.

Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments are carried at the balance sheet at fair
value. The use of methodologies, models and assumptions in
pricing and valuing the financial assets and liabilities is subjective
and requires varying degrees of judgement by management,
which may result in significantly different fair values and results.
All significant financial valuation models are strictly controiled
and regularly recalibrated and vetted.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES
The Group's activities expese it 1o a variety of financial risks,
including foreign exchange risk, ¢redit risk and liguidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group carries out its business mainly in Hong Kong and
most of the transactions are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and United States dollars. The Group’s assets and liabilities are
mainly denominated in Hong Keng dollars. The Group had neither
engaged in any derivative activities nor committed to any financial
instruments to hedge its balance sheet exposures. In view of the
stability of the exchange rate between Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars, the Directors consider the Group’s foreign

exchange risk to be minimal.

Credit risk

The Group’s credii risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables included in the balance sheet which represent the
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the
Group’s financial assets. No other financial assets carry a
significant exposure to credit risk. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a number
of counterparties and customers. The Group performs ongoing
credit evaluation of its customers’ financial condition and requires
no collateral from its customers. The allowance for doubtful debts
is based upon a review of the expecied collectibility of all trade
and other receivables.

Liquidity risk
The Group manages its liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient
cash mainly from internally generated cashflow.

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the
Group’s incoms and operating cash flows are substantizlly
independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Group's interest-rate risk arises from borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the Group fo cash flow interest-
rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest-rate risk. The Group does not use any financial
instrument to manage its interest-rate risk.
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TURNOVER

Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable for
sales of goods by the Group to outside customers, less returns
and allowances, and revenue received and receivable from sub-
licensing of film rights, film exhibition and film distribution, and

is analysed as follows:

Sales of goods HEE®
Sub-licensing of film rights SEERRE
Film exhibition and film EHErBRRETEA

distribution income

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

Turnover and contribution to operating results and assets and
liabilities by business segment has not been prepared as the
Group has only one businass segment which is the distribution
of film rights by different audio-visual programmes and sub-

licensing.

As the Group's turnover for the year ended 31 March, 2006 are
substantially made to customers based in Hong Kong ard the
operations of the Group are substantially located in Hong Kong,
no separate analysis for the geographical segment information is

provided accordingly.
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2006 2005

—ReXE —ERRE

HK$'000 HKE'000

FET FHET

61,730 65,608

10,389 0,896

11,782 4,482

83,901 79,986
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8. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

Profit from operations has been
arrived at after charging:

Staff costs
— Directors’ remuneration
(Note 11)
— Qther staff costs
— Retirement benefits scheme
contributions, excluding
Directors’ contributions

Total staff costs

Depreciation
- Owned assets
— Assets under finance leases
Amortisation of film rights
included in cost of sales
Amortisation of trademark
included in administrative
eXpenses
Auditors’ remunerzation
Cost of inventories included
in cost of sales

Bad debts written off

and after crediting:

Sundry income

Exchange gain

Gain on disposal of plant,
property and equipment

Interest income

Notes to the Financial Sfatements
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2006
—EEXRF
HK$'000
FET

3,689
8,731

433

12,853

1,164

&M

27,132

15

300

16,012

135

o0

68

550
185

2005
ZEEAF
HK$'000
FET

3,779
8,340

410

13,529

335

820

21,925

15
250

22,472

243

133

122
30
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. RMERSE
2006 2005
—E2EZRE ZETIRF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FER FEZ
Interast on: ERFE -
Bank borrowings wholly RHRAFATHBEER
! repayable within five years |RITEERE 1,154 951
‘ Other borrowings wholly ARAFRNEEEES
repayable within five years - HpEE 1,264 252
‘ f Finance leases BEEH 94 i34
5 2,512 1,337
© 10. PROHIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 10. R EIEL S F
! The profit attributable to shareholders includes a loss of BEREMGFEOERFRAABERTERZE
i HK$25,000 (2005: loss of HK$41,000) which has been dealt B25,000ETT(ZFTAF : 518210008 ) -

| with in the financial statements of the Company.
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 11. EFE &
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2005: BERgERTFAR(CERRF  MB)EZZH
nine) Directors were as follows: EWT :
For the year ended 31 March, 2006 REZE-ZEXREZ/F=E+—HULEFE
Retirement
benefits
Salaries and scheme
Fee other benefits  contributions Total
BE4EF
£t FeREREN HFEER b
HK$'G00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FER FERL TERL FRx
Executive Directors HHTEE
Mr. Fung Yu Hing, Allan ER@LE - 895 12 907
Ms. Leung Siu Kuen, Janet 2LELT - 585 12 697
Mr. Fung Yee Sang BRELE - 839 12 851
Mr. Au Lik Man, Simon BAERL - 498 12 510
Non-executive Directors FAFEE
Dr. Lo Wing Yan, Wikiam, s ERCHBLT ATHL 170 - - 170
Ms. Fung Suen L&, Jacqueline BEiME 60 EFY, 12 394
Independant non-executive Directors BYFETES
Mr. Chan Koon Chung, Johnny BEMEE 60 - - 50
Mr. Chau, Stephen FEELE 60 - - )]
Mr. Hui Kwok Wah HEERE 40 - - 40
350 3,239 B0 3,689
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
For the year ended 31 March, 2005

Executive Directors BTEES

Mr. Fung Yu Hing, Allan EEELE

Ms. Leung Siu Kuen, janet 2oBET

Mr. Fung Yee Sang ERERE

Mr. Au Lik Man, Simon EHEREE
Non-axecutive Directors FAGES

Dr. Lo Wing Yan, Witliam, jp EXxEHL 4782
Ms. Fung Suen L2, Jacqueline BERDE
Independent non-executive Directors BIFATES
Mr. Chan Koon Chung, Johnny BEaz4

Mr. Chau, Stephen FHELE

Mr. Hui Kwok Wah GlEES A

During the year, no emolurnents were paid by the Group to any
Directors as in inducement to join or upen jeining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. None of the Direciors waived
any emcluments during the year.

ELRLE

1. EEM & (=
RBE_ZTIF=-A=ZT-BLEE

Retirement
benefits
Salaries and scheme
Fee other benefits  contributions Total
EHEA
#E: HeREREH e B
HK$'000 HK3000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TAR FER FER TERL
- 911 12 923
- 598 12 710
- 921 12 933
- 436 12 508
180 - - 180
60 313 12 385
&0 - - " 60
60 - - 60
20 - - 20
280 3,339 60 3,779

FR FERYERTAESINMEARSIK
SMBALSBREANSESRAFARRR
B -RAEEERFFELRAKEAME -
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12. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 2. BEME
During the year, the five highest paid individuals in the Group ER - AEEREESFATOEENE(ZER
included four (2005 four) Directors, details of whose emoluments AE MR EES  BEECHHEEFEREIXH
are set oui in note 11 above. E11 e
The emoluments of the remaining one (2005: one} individual for HEE-TERF=A=+—BLEEREZHT—
the year ended 31 March, 2006, were as foflows: FZ(ZEERE —BALTZHESWT:
2006 2005
—EBEEARF ZERHE
HK$000 HKE'060
FET FET
Salaries and other benefits 2 REMER 408 378
Bonus BT 12 16
Retirement benefits schemes RIKEFETE
contributions HE 12 12
433 406
The aggregate emoluments of the highest paid employee for the EERESHEE BN L ER AT E000,000
year is within the emoluments band ranging from nil to B e
HK$1,000,000.
13. TAXATION 13. A
2006 2005
mEERF —ETEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
The charge comprises: BEIHBRE
Hong Kong Profits Tax ERFEH 39 200
Taxation in other jurisdictions HEp B EEREZHE - 41
Deferred tax charge (Note 29) iR FE BE X i (A AE29) 893 1,421
932 1,662
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% of the estimated EEFEHNBREESREHESBENERS
assessable profit for the both years. : 17.5% T E »
Taxation in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing EHEEEE 2 HEAREEIEERZBRIB
in the relevant jurisdictions. EHE -

e
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13. TAXATION (continued) 13. 815 (&)

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the
income statement as follows:

AFEEBRAXHERSERMTENEERT

2006 2005
—BBRE —EEMREE
HKS000 HKE°000
FAX FET
Profit before taxation B A A 3,382 6,805
Tax at the domestic income REMABRBEITS%
tax rate of 17.5% (2005: 17.5%) (ZE®HF: 17.5%) 5t B ZBLIE 592 1,191
Tax effect of income not EXEREETE
taxable in determining BARBRBAZHERE
taxable profit - (73)
Tax effect of expenses that are EEERHEMNSTELH
not deductible in determining REZREARER
taxable profit 277 503
Effect of different tax rates of REMFEZEBREBHRRA
operation in other jurisdictions BRERARAZEE - 35
Tax loss utilised BRAZHESR - €
Unrecognised tax loss RERZHERE 63 9
Tax charge for the year AEEHEAX L 932 1,662

Details of deferred taxation are set ouf in Note 29.

EEBEHE SRR E29 -
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14, EARNINGS PER SHARE

14. SEEF

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is

based on the following data:

Earnings
Profit attributabie to equity holders
of the Company for the year

Number of shares
Weighted average number of
ordinary shares

Effect of dilutive poteniial
ordinary shares:
Share options

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purposes
of diluted earnings per share

27
AATBEHEARE
75 ik

B3 B

HaBnEF LR
HEB 2 BERTHE

BBRE

AUHESREERTNZ
FHBIMEFHRE

EREARERERFNERTIIBREE

2006
Z2ERF
HK$'000
FET

2,305

402,300,000

9,906,738

412,206,738

2005
—EFERE
HK$'000
FET

4,394

402,225,205

10,648,573

412,873,778
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i5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % HEREE
THE GROUP EEE
Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
improvements  and fixtures equipment Vehicles Total
mEyssE BAREE  RRERR RE )
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET TET FET FERT FET
cosT RE
At 1 April, 2004 R-EEREWA—H - 2,544 3,557 © 2210 8311
Additions . R"E - 29 94 626 749
Disposals sE - (237) (121} (381) (739)
At 31 March, 2005 R-ZERF=-A=1t-8 - 2,336 3,530 2,455 8,321
. Additions FE 2,528 864 330 1,829 5551
. Disposals HE - {1,568) (94) (1,083} {2,755)
At 31 March, 2006 R-BEAE=-A=1—-H 2,528 1,632 3,766 3,191 11,137
ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION SHFE
At 1 April, 2004 RoBEMEMA—A - 2,223 2,396 1,881 6,500
provided for the year ERFE - 17 617 321 1,155
Disposals HE - {237) (118} {381) (736)
At 31 March, 2005 R-oBEEREZRA=1+—H - 2,203 2,895 1,821 6,219
Provided for the year EXFHE 232 346 586 891 2,055
i Disposals HE - {1,568) (94) (1,083) {2,755)
At 31 March, 2006 RoEZXE=RZ+—R 232 981 3,387 1,619 6,219
NET BOOK VALUE EEEFE
At 31 March, 2006 R-ETAFZRE=1—A 2,296 65 379 1,572 4,898
.‘;'G‘
At 31 March, 2005 R-EERE=R=Z+—H - 133 £35 534 1,402




5i8 72 BIE

Panorama International

Holdings Limited - ANNUAL REPORT 2006

. Notes to the Financial Statements

HESENRE
for the year ended 31 March, 2006
E-EEAREZAST BiHFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

At 31 March, 2006, the net book value of the Group’s motor

vehicles includes an amount of HK$1,572,000 (2005:

HK $634,000) in respect of assets held under finance leases.

At 31 March, 2005, the net hook value of ih
and fixtures and office equipments included an amount of
HK$76,000 and HK$406,000 respectively, in respect of as

held under finance leases.

16. FILM RIGHTS

cOSsT
AL 1 April, 2004
Additions

At 31 March, 2005
Additions

At 31 March, 2006

AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April, 2004
Provided for the year
impairment loss recognised

At 31 March, 2005
provided for the year

At 31 March, 2006

i CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 March, 2006

At 31 March, 2005

The amortisation period adopted for film rights is 210 5ye

e Group’s furniture

sets

(5. 9% BHEREMW &
mﬁgﬁém:gzﬁﬁzﬁz+—BZEﬁ%
ﬁﬂﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ZﬁE%ﬁnpw%ﬁ
(:@2£$z6mpmﬁi)=

$$E@ﬁ&%§&%ﬂ§%%ﬂ:@@ﬁﬁs
HE+—EZ%E%@%W@%E%@EE%%
%Z%EEE%%ﬂm%i&mmmﬁﬁn

16. LR RE
THE GROUP
E&EH
HK$000
FET
HiE
m:gﬁﬂﬁmﬂ—ﬁ 106,675
RE 44,657
R-ETREZA=T R 151,332 E
RE 33,444
m:ggﬁﬁzﬁz+*5 184,776 ;
BERAE ;
pomEREMA—B SQM1§
£2REHE 21,925 §
ERZRESE 3&7%
%:§E£$5ﬂ3+—a 85,183
FEREH 27,132
e
%:§=F$EEE+—E 112,315
o
BEEE

R-BEARFZRE=TH

m:§§£$5ﬁ5+—a

ars.

72,461

AT

66,149

P il

ypsERATBEAB-EES
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17. TRADEMARK 17. & &
THE GROUP
TEE
HK$ 000
FBIT
COST BE
At 1 April, 2004, 31 March, 2005 pozzmsmE—2  —2FEFRF=ZAZ+T-RAR
and 31 March, 2006 —BEXRE=ZA=1+—8 75
AMORTISATION B
At 1 April, 2004 RoBEMENA—E 30
Provided for the year FERNER 15
At 31 March, 2005 R-_BZEREE=A=1—8 45
Provided for the year FWEHE 15
At 31 March, 2006 W-BERE=ZR=+—8 60
CARRYING AMOUNT BEE
At 31 March, 2006 HNoBmBRRE=ZF=T—H 15
At 31 March, 2005 Ro-FEBRRF=AZT—E 30

The amortisation period adopted for trademark is 5 years.

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, &t cost ELTRY - BRERAE
Amounts due from subsidiaries EUMBRINER

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the
Directors, the amounts will not be repayable within twelve
months from the balance sheet date and are shown as non-
current.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March, 2006 are
set out in note 35.

BERAZBHEEARF -

1. RMEARZER
THE COMPANY

ERH

2006 2005

—EEKRE -RETRF

HK$000 HK$'000

TFHET FET

25,572 25,572

16,867 16,969
142,439 42,541 |

EURHEARNKEARLER 22REETER
HeEERA EERETEERERGT R
FPEIE - HF{EHMENER -

EASR-EEAEZ=A=+—B2MBRATE |
=t E}\\ ®

o memmem R van st
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sE-2ErE= A=+ BUEFE

19. INVENTORIES 19. 8
THE GROUP
rEE
2006 2005
—EBEEARE —FEERE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Work in progress EE M 2,066 3,346
Finished goods B m 20,311 19,563
22,377 22,208
e
All inventories are staied at cost. FEFEEHNRENKR -
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 BHREMBERRE
The Group generzlly allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 AEE-RETRSHEF FH30E0H 2iEE
days to its trade customers. The aged analysis of trade receivables M EPELRERBERBZRBEINAT ¢
at the balance sheet date is as follows:
THE GROUP
FEE
2006 2005
—2ERE —ETRF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FER FET
Trade receivables: BoEBERE:
0 — 30 days 308 5,640 15,795
31 - 60 days 31Z60R 2,885 3,891
61 — 80 days 61=90H 2,852 2,672
91 - 180 days 91=1808 6,369 1,817
Over 180 days HBid180R 5,337 3,304
, T e
23,083 27,479
Other receivables E ith FE W FRIE 3,770 8,325
26,853 35,?_9;’-’:
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21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES

During the year, the Group had the following balances with

related Companies:

Amount due from a related
company:

Golden Scene Company Limited
{Note a)
Applause Pictures Limited {Note b)

- Amounts due to related companies:

Golden Scene Company
Limited (Note a)

Panorama Entertainment
Holdings Limited (Note c)

EWREEARRE

EAEXBRLE
(Hiita)
Applause Pictures Limited

(K &b)

Panorama Entertainment
Holdings Limited (5% #c)

21, Bl EABRELAFRE

Ex FEBEUTERERRAZERER ¢

THE GROUP
&
Maximum
amount
Balance Balance  outstanding
at at during
31_.3.200_6 1.4.2005 the year
R-ZT2RE R-IEEBIF
=A=+—H mE-—B FHABES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
6,537 - 6,537
- 520 520
6,237 520
- 1,587
3 7
3 1,594
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21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES 21. [E W EMAEEATRE &
{continued}
Notes: B g -
(a) One of directors of Golden Scene Company Limited is also a director ) EEEEERAFAET SEERREQEETRHY
of & subsidiary of the Company. The amount is unsecured, interest- EADCEE -EEXENEER - 2BREARER
tree and repayable on demand. B 2
(b) Applause Pictures Limited was a company of which Mr. Fung Yu ()  Applause Pictures Limited 8 B TEERBETAR

Hing, Allan, an executive Director, was a director and had beneficial EEEREFEG2AT - REER BEEPRERE
interest. During the year, Mr. Fung Yu Hing, Allan has resigned as Applause Pictures LimitedBAITE S + RERAFER
an executive Director and has no beneficial interest in Applause HESE -BEXEREEE  2LRENEARHE
Pictures Lirnited. The amount is unsecured, interest-iree and iE .

repayable on demand.

{c) Panorama Entertainment Holdings Limited Th S B 0 5%
£ - BROBETREERMEREREZL0 - BE
RENEER  2LRERBIRREE -

(0 Panorama Entertainment Holdings Limited is a company in which
Mr. Fung Yu Hing, Allan, Ms, Leung Siu Kuen, Janet and Ms. Fung
Suen Lai, lacgueline have beneficial interesis. The amount is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

22. AR REBEGRE
FEARRLESEARAZRESHAT :

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYAEBLES
The aged analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet date is

as follows:
THE GRCUP
FEE

2006 2005
—EERE —ETAF
HKS$000 HK$ 000
FET FEZT

Trade payables: BESEMNMRE:
0 - 30 days 30BA 5,732 2,952
31 ~ 60 days 31ZE60H 3,285 4,733
61 — 180 days 61Z1808 8,531 7,474
QOver 180 days FBiE180E 9,504 7,399
27,052 22,558
Other payables HEeEMARIEA 10,664 14,934
37,716 37,492




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March, 2006
B2E—_BRSF-A=+—BUFE
23. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 23. MEBEHRE
THE GROUP
T
Present value of Minimum
minimum lease payments lease payments
BEBNFRERE REESTRE
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZEERE ZEETE ZSEXRE —Z2TRE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'0600 HK$000
FET FET FER FAET

Amounts payable under finance BREASHETHNERN

leases are as follows: MENT -
Within one year —FRQ 430 503 493 558
In the second to fifth years E_EERF (BEMF

inclusive BIEER) 1,099 394 1,230 440

1,529 897 1,723 998
Less: Future finance charges R ARARUERX - - (194) (101)
Present value of lease obligations B EERE 1,529 897 1,529 897
Less: Amount due within one year & : ARFIARBBED
shown under current liabilities —FEREBFE (430) (503)

Amount due after one year —FEBERE 1,089 394
The average lease term was 2 years (2005: 2 years). For the year EHENFHRAR2F(ZEEIE : 25) - REE
ended 31 March, 2006, the average effective annual interast —EEARE=ZEZ+—AtERE -  PHEERER
rate is 3.0% (2005: 2.9%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract EE30%(ZFFAF 2.9%) « FIBEESRT]
date. All leases were on a fixed repayment basis and no HAERE - RERNHREFERZEEST 8
arrangemenis have been entered into for contingent rental WEIVEFAFEZFEARRZES -
payments.
The Group’s obligations under finance leases were secured by ZEEREREROFRIENEEREBAREE
the lessor’s charge over the leased assets. BENHERER-
The fair value of the Group’s obligations under finance leases, FEREREREROMERBEZ D FE (EES
determined based on the present value of the estimated future RRBEERELARTTEANERREZIREEE)
cash flows discounted using the prevailing market rate at the REEEEBREEHES -

balance shaet date approximate to their carrying amounts.
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24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 4. BT REMESE

THE GROUP
xEE
2006 2005
—EBERF —FTRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRET FET
Bank overdrafts BITEX 17,868 22,675
Bank borrowings BEEER 14,867 2,120
Other borrowings HEE 1,212 1,779
33,947 26,574
Aralysed as: TR
Secured B 32,467 26,091
Unsecured REMR 1,480 483
33,947 26,574
w s e
The maturity profite of the above LrEZRETAHEHABENT ¢
foans and overdrafts is as follows:
On demand or within one year EERX—FA 27,187 25,370
; More than one year, but not —FEERFR
exceeding two years 6,760 1,204
33,847 26,574
Less: Amounts due within B ARFAERDEED
one year shown under —ZREBRE
current labilities (27,187) (25,370
Amounts due after one year —FEHEIRE 6,760 1,204
W

The average effective annual interest rate during the year for
bank overdrafts and bank borrowings are £.44% and 7.09%
respectively (2005: 8.55% and 5.24% respectively).

The other borrowing represented a loan granted by a financial
institution bears interest at 5% per annum.

The carrying amounts of both current and non-current
borrowings approximate to their fair values.

AEERTEERRTEEZIFHERENED
258.44%B7.09% (ZEEREF : FEIABIS%

56.24%) =

HpEERRE-RHBEEERNER - UF

ERESE -

R RERDEEZERERAATES

i

&
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EEZZEAFESASH—HULEE

25. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised: EERA
Ordinary shares EREELN AR
of HK$0.01 each ZERAR
lssued and fully paid: BBETRYBRE
At 1 April, 2004 RZFEFEE
mA—H
Exercise of share options TTIERERE

At 31 March, 2005 and
31 March, 2006

Lt
rmtea

ez

25. B&E
No. of shares Amount
iiRvig- =] =]
HK$000
FAET
1,500,000,000 15,000
401,600,000 4,016
700,000 7
402,300,000 4,023

There is no change in the issued share capiial of the Company
during the current year.

During the year ended 31 March, 2005, 700,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued and allotted at HK$0.033 per share
as a result of the exercise of share options by the employees of
the Company.

All the shares issued during the prior year ranked pari passu with
the then existing shares in all respects.

26

OTHER PAYABLE

The amount is unsacured, interest-free and will not be repayable
before 31 March, 2007. The carrying amount of other payable
approximate to its fair value as at 31 March, 2006.

ERRIZEBEETRIREFEREED -

BE-EERE=R=1+—BUEF BEa7
CTEEITERERE - 700,000 FREE0IET
ZRGNERODNBEAEREZTRET -

FAEEFABRTZRBESSEREBZHAAR
BHERRSHET -

26. BB REA
ZERANBER  RERBTRR-TRLE
ZAST-HHRE - EHERREZREER
ER-TEAFZAZ+-HZATEMAS -
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27 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 27. BBERiEE S

The Company has two share options schemes, including the Share AATREMERRENE B
Option Scheme and Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Detaits of the RoBBENEREHE - mmEERESDEZ
EEWT

(a) BREE

two share option schemes are as follows:

(a) Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme was adopted on 25 April, 2002
for the primary purpose of providing incentives and to
recognise the contribution of 1he eligible participanis to the
growth of the Group and will expire on 24 April, 2012.
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may grant
options to eligible fuil-time or part-time employees, including
any executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
Directors, and consultants or advisers of the Company and/
or any of its subsidiaries.

Up to 31 March, 2006, no options have been granted since
the adoption of the Share Option Scheme. The total number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme, the Pre-iPC Share Option Scheme
(as referred to below) and any other option schemes is not
permitted to exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in any
one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company, without prior approvel from the
Company's shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within three days of the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant.

Options may be exercised at any time during a period to be
notified by the board of Directors upon the grant of options
provided that the option period shall not exceed 10 years
from the date of grant of the options. No minimum period
for which an option must be held is required. The exercise
price, which is determined by the Board is the highest of: (i)
the closing price per share on the date of grant; (i) the
averzge closing price per chare for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (ii}) the
norminal value of a share.

K%Em:%%:imﬁ:+£aﬁﬁﬁﬁ
%ﬁ%'égﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁéﬁﬁAiﬁﬁﬁ
ponczsEBRRIER  UHR-F-
FWA-THARER * REEREE
?%ﬂﬁiﬁﬁ&/ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%ﬁﬂz
EReBEERER (BERIT - #ART
Eﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁéﬂﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BEARE -

Mo o> g |

s=—sPAE=A=t—FB ' aRBRR
B gk &R PERE - REBRRES
2 BRARBENBRESH(ATOR
EAEEERETNTREZBERESRL
ﬁ1ﬁ#§%$?§ﬁiﬁ$ﬂﬁ$ﬂ%aﬁsﬁﬁﬁ$z
30% « REA—FTETFETBAZBERE
P RzBRANETEREFAATRESR
FRAEZ1Y  EREFATRRHLAEZA
1B °

EREAREE SRS ERTUESA
TERSHBRREIMIBEL -

%Eﬁ%&%%&%%@ﬂgﬁﬂﬁWZﬁ
ﬁ%ﬁ’%ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ-ﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁ%
%$%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ@§ﬁﬂﬂ%mﬁ°%
&%iﬁ%ﬁ%Z%E,ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgg
EE’%MTE%Z%%%?@%&E%Z
@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ?@ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁ@%%
gy aRIFHEHE  RiDARBHEE"
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27. BB
by BRLAEBRETEREZSS

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
{b) Pre-IPO Share Cption Scheme

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted on 25 April,
2002 for the primary purpose of providing incentives and to
recognise the contribution of the eligible participants to the
growth of the Group and/or to the listing of the Shares on
GEM and expired on 9 May, 2002. Options granted prior to
such expiry shall continue to be vafid and exercisable during
the exercise period.

Under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Board may
grant options to efigible full-time or part-time employees,
including any executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive Directors, and consultants or advisers of the
Company end/or any of its subsidiaries.

As at 31 March, 2006, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Pre-IPO Share Opiion Scheme was 30,000,000
{2005: 30,950,000}, representing 7.5% (2005: 7.7%)} of the
shares of the Company in issue at balance sheet date.

Options granted must be taken up by the end of the next
business day following the date of grant, upon payment of
HK$1 per grant. Options may be exercised at any time from
the expiry of twelve months from and including the date
when dealings in the shares first commenced on GEM to
the 10th anniversary of the date on which dealings in the
shares first commenced on GEM. The exercise price, which
is determined by the Board is either 10% of the piacing
price (options granted at this price being referred to below
as “Pool A Options®) or 70% of the placing price (options
granted at this price being referred to below as "Pocl B
Options”).

FRATIR-CCE—FRA-+AEERE R
LPHEENERENE  ESEE%DR S
FEEBATHEEEBRE "SZRHES
R LtHER ER-ZE-—F /A8
ER r-HERBHAEH:BBETRTE
HRN—EFHEATTFHE-

BEEALFEEIRRESS B9
AEALRR/REERHBATZAERS
BEZREE (RERT - FRFTRBIFE
HATER) REXREMNAENELEBERE -

R-BEEXEZA=+—08 BBELRE
FENBEREHEBELNMERTECERE
$RZBGEE 5300000008 (ZFER
£ 1 30,950,0008%) F AERRRBEERZ
BRTBOHISH(ZBERE 1 7.7%) °

HyBEREAREHABET—EExa
EHER CERSHERERZ A
- BRETRARSELLREREREES
et + = RABERTE  TESRBHE
HEREXEEYAEHRETHEHEZRE
F GROEASESeEET ARSEY
10% (M BRELZBREBABERED
FREFZ70% GHERBELZERREB

BEBE] -
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 27. BEHEET S (&)
(b) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) by BERAHEBENBRETE @
The following table discloses the details of the Company's TERESE_EE E=A=4+—ALE
share options held by employees and movements in such EFEEFEAQRTEREFERERED

holdings during the year ended 31 March, 2006:

Exercised Lapsed

Category Qutstanding during during Qutstanding

of participants Option Type at 1.4.2005 the year the year at 31.3.2006

R-ZT2IHF RZZERE

mAE—H =ZR=+-H

SBRERR BERESR RITE ERTE EREH RITE

{Note)
(B )

Directors of Pool A Options 14,800,000 - - 14,800,000
the Company MABRE

ERRES Pool B Options 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
BEBRIE

24,800,000 - - 24,800,000

Senior Pool A Options - - - -
management AR EEREEE

BREER Pool B8 Optians 500,000 - (500,000) -
BIE MG AR IE

500,000 - {500,000} -

Other Pool A Options 1,400,000 - - 1,400,000
employees ABRBIRE

HMER Pool B Options 4,250,000 - (450,000) 3,300,000
BHERE

5,650,000 - {450,000) 5,200,000

30,950,000 - {950,000) 30,000,000
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 27. BREHE @
(b} Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) by ERPEEEFERESS (&)
The following table discloses the details of the Company's TREEEE"FEAFZAZ+T—HIE
share options held by employees and movements in such EEEFRBRAATERESFRARES
holdings during the year ended 31 March, 2005:
Exercised Lapsed
Category Outstanding during during Cutstanding
of participants Option Type at 1.4.2004 the year the year at 31.3.2005
R-ZBOE R-ZZEF
. mE—H =B=+-Hr
3 £REFR BRER RTE FRTE FARY RITE
{Note)
: (B732)
Directors of Pool A Options 14,800,000 - - 14,800,000
the Company AMEBRE
KLFES Pool B Options 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
BIAERRRE
24,800,000 - - 24,800,000
; Senior Pool A Options 500,000 - (500,000) -
management ABERE
y BREEE Pool B Options 950,000 - (450,000) 500,000
B4E B RRE
1,450,000 - (950,000) 500,000
‘ Other Pool A Options 2,100,000 (700,000} - 1,400,000
i employees AERBRE
HuES Pool B Options 4,500,000 - (250,000) 4,250,000
BAEBRE
6,600,000 (700,000) (250,000C) 5,650,000
32,850,000 (70C,000) (1,200,000} 30,950,000
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 27. BB )
(b) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) BEXAAEBENERENS &
Details of specific categories of options are as follows: BEREZ EBBERFEENT -
Date Exercisable Exercise
Option type of grant Vesting period period price
EREER EHBAH EES TEH TERE
HK$
AT
Fool A Options 25.4.2002 26.4.2002 - 08.5.2003 09.5.2003 - 08.5.2012 0.033
AR EERRIE
Pootl B Options 25.4.2002 26.4.2002 — 08.5.2003 09.5.2003 - 08.5.2012 0.231
B RS RR1E
Note: The closing price of the Company’s share immediately W CEBEREBRTENREELTRBUETE
before the dates on which the share options were exercised ATR0094BTR0.098ER -
were HK30.094 and HK$0.098 per share.
The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in ELEREYFEYESTERALTRERE
the Company’s or the Group’s balance sheet until such time as TEESERANE EZEERERGTESRL -
the options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in the MANZEREREERARRARRA - BN
income statement in respect of the value of options granted. BEREMRTLRG HURAEAEIARE
Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued SrEskx  BERTEESREHEREZE
are recorded by the Company 2s additional share capital at the 5 BRELTZBHEEERIE - TEEH
norninal value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price HEARRBEEHIBERE  BRHERITER

per share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by the - REZRAM LM -
Company in the share premium account. Options lapsed or

cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the register

of outstanding options.
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28. RESERVES
THE COMPANY

28. f#{E

FRT

Share Contributed Accumulated

At 1 April, 2004 R-CFZFEFHE—R
lssue of shares on exercise of BH{TEERERTRG

share options
Net loss for the year

FEREEEER

R-EZTEFM™A—H
EEREBRFE

At 1 Aprif, 2005
Net loss for the year
At 31 March, 2006 —ETAE=ZAZ+—H
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of
the net assets of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group

Reorganisation, and the nominal value of the Company's shares
issued in exchange.

The Company's reserves available for distribution represent the
share premium, contributed surplus and accumulated fosses.
Under ithe Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Memorandum or Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution of dividend, the Company

is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. At 31 March, 2006, the reserve available for distribution
to shareholders is HK$38,230,000 {2005; HK$38,255,000) which
represents the aggregate of share premium and contributed
surplus of HK$38,524,000 (2005: HK$38,524,000) net of
accumulated losses HK$284,000 {2005; HK$268,000).

premium surplus losses Total
BawE BAEBE# RIHB #st
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKE000 HK$000

FET TFET TET FET

12,837 25,571 {228) 38,280
16 - - 16

- - {41} 4t
12,953 25,571 {(269) 38,255
- - (25) {25
12,953 25,571 {294) 38,230

ARTHELRHERRBEEHIARBAHRE
AEEESEBERTERSXAZALARGE
HZ2 815 -

EATTESERERERNDEER  BEER
REHER - REBSHEARNZE (BB F22
= BROERAETHNEEEREERPTHE
HmEE SARNNROEERIRBHESEER
@HEMBHNEATEAAAREISHERRLRSE - B
“ERREEASTH-RBAUHSEFRENERS
#38,230,000 T (ZEERF ¢ 38,255,000
F) - REROKERE MR HHAN38,524,00078
T(-BETASF - 385240008 L) A RHER
294,000 (ZEERS : 269,00085T) -




318 sc EBiE |

Panorama International Holdings Limited - ANNUAL REPORT 2006 “7

=00
[E=Trb ot

“Notes to the Financial Statements
HEZEENE

For the year ended 31 March, 2006
SE-—BTAE-AS+BLFRE

29. DEFERRED TAXATION 29, BERER
The following are the major deferred tax liability {asset) TEHICSEREEEMERLEIEELRA
recognised by the Group and movements thereon for the year: BE(EE)REEY:
THE GROUP
e 3
Accelerated
tax Tax

depreciation losses Total
MEREFE BEBE |

; HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
f FET FBIE FET |
THE GROUP - | i
At 1 April, 2004 R-ZTZWEAA—H 8,231 {6,368) 1,863 |
Charge (credit) to income AEEHE GTA) RER .j
statement for the year 3,115 (1,694} 1,421
At 31 March, 2005 and R-BTEEZA=+—H
1 April, 2005 E-—ZEZEREWA—AH 11,346 (8,062) 3,284 :
Charge (credit) to income EEEHNR GIAERE _
statement for the year 1,306 (£13) 893 ’
At 31 March, 2006 R-BEAE=ZA=T—A 12,652 (8.475) 4,177
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, the deferred tax
liability (asset) had been offset in accordance with the conditions
set out in HKAS 12. The following is the analysis of the deferred
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred taxation liability BEDERE
Deferred taxation asset BEHBEE

The Company has no significant unrecognised deferred taxation
for the year or at the balance sheet date.

A .
(LTI Y

20, BHERIE (&)
REE R R AN Ry B ESEE
HEEE(EE)  LEHNEESES - Hismg

ZEERELEHIWDT
THE GROUP
r5E
2006 2005
TERRF —EFRF
HK$'000 HK3$'000
FET TET
12,652 11,346
(8.475) (8.062)
4,177 3,284

FRRIREEENEREEASEEASARE
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30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 30. ESHVRH
THE GROUP
ZEER
2006 2005
ZEEARE —EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEXT FETT
Minimum lease payments under FREBEEELH
operating leases during the year: BEEANEREBEOT :
Premises mE 2,932 2,696
Office equipment BOZERE 232 337
3,164 3,033
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future REER FEEREBESZHTIREESERLOD
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases DERPLEREMELEENHZE - BEES
in respect of premises and office equipment which fall due as BEHBAENNAREERNTRERT
follows:; -
THE GROUP
EEE
2006 2005
ZEERE —EEgFF
HK3$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Premises W&
Within one year —F£R 433 251
In the second to fifth years E_FEFREFE
inclusive (HERFE8ERA) 161 -
594 251
Office equipment RLoBRE
* Within one year —FR 164 337
' In the second to fifth years E-FEZEL#F
inclusive (EEREREERN) 559 252
723 589

Leases are negotiated for an average term of one 1o two years
: with fixed rentals.
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31. OTHER COMMITMENTS

32

33

.

Contracted for but not provided
for in the financial statements

Other commitments represent licence fees commitment to
licensors for which fi!m master materials have not been delivered

to the Group.

The Company did not have any significant commitments as at
the balance date.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 March, 2006, the Group pledged time deposits of
approximately HK$8,218,000 to banks to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group.

At 31 March, 2005, the Group pledged time deposits of
approximately HK$10,127,000 and a film right with a carrying
value of HK$7,155,000 to banks fo secure banking facilities
granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March, 2006, the Company has given corporate guarantees
with the aggregate amount of HK$40,700,000 (2005:
HK$29,250,000) to banks for banking facilities granted to the
Group.

31.

BETHEREMBHERA;R

32.

33.

Ht&iE
THE GROUP
ZEE
2006 2005
ZEERE ZEERE
HK$'000 HK$000
FEZ FET
15,069 23,451

RRBESRERFEBIPABBRN TR
B ZIEERARR -

CALREETUEMEAERE -

g=EER

HEEMR

RIBEEREZF[F=+—8 r KREEFEFER
#1{E8,218,000% T « AR FAREHRITRIE
WERS -

R-FERFZA=+-80  ZEEHAFSTER
BEICIIVEAHNESERREEED
71550008 T2 R IRE - AERTAEENS
TRBENERS -

g 3=
R-FRERFZA=+—H ZRARBETEE
By ERITRY B MR 1T fE i £ 1540,700,0003 7T (=
TEREEF 20,250,000 T)NARNER -
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BEATX &
During the year, the Group had the following transactions with ERC-FEEEEEATERNTRZS !

relatad parties:

THE GROUP
A &M
Name of related party Nature of transactions 2006 2005
BEEALERE ZEEER —EETRE —EERLE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FE
Golden Scene Company Limited Acquisitions of film rights (Note e)
(Note a) KRR R RIE (B iEe) 7,175 4,173
SEEEERLR (Fida) Film exhibition expenses (Note &)
EX FRAX (B 1,186 110
Management fee (Note e)
TEER (Kde) 1,000 1,000
Players Pictures Company Limited  Office rental {Note e)
("PPCL") (Note b) (#f #Eb) BREEE (Mte) 327 -
Metroplois Communications Office rental (Note )
Limited (“MCL") {Note ) (Bf#¥c) W R EWR (Aite) 327 -
Brilliant Business Limitad Office rental (Note &)
(*BBL") {Note d) (#f&d) HAZHEE (Kate) 217 -
Sunny Fancy Limited (“SFL") Oifice rental (Note &)
(Note d) (K& d) HLERE (A Fe) 305 -
Notes: BE
(a) One of the directors of Golden Scene Company Limited is also a (&) BEBRERLFET—EERENRFLBEMELR
director of a subsidiary of the Company. BlzEE-
(b) PPCL is & company beneficially owned equally by Mr. Fung Yu (b} PPOLBEBRHASRRIELIEREFRATESEZ
Hing, Allan and Ms. Leung Siu Kuen, Janet. NI
{¢} MCL is beneficially owned by Mr. Fung Yu Hing, Alian and Ms. (@ EERELRRIEIIANREEEMUZI0%R
Leung Siu Kuen, Janet as to 10% and 90% respectively, 90%EE ©
J {¢h BBL and SFL are the companies whoily owned by Mr. Fung Yee (@) BBLRSFLASBEAREZZEEISZRF -
Sang.
{e) These transactions were entered in accordance with the terms of (8) HSXZXERREFHRBHEZ EHITL-

tha relevant agreement.
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34, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
During the year, certain Directors provided personal guarantees
and security to banks and financial institution io the extent of

HK$23,200,000 {2005: HK$5,000,000) to secure credit facilities
granted to the subsidiaries of the Company as follows:

{iy Properties owned by Ms. Leung Siu Kuen, Janet, an executive
Director of the Company.

(iiy Properties owned by PPCL, MCL, BBL and SFL in which Mr.
Fung Yu Hing, Allan, Ms. Leung Siu Kuen, Janet and Mr.
Fung Yee Sang have interest,

(i) Corporate guarantee from Patora Optical Industrial Limited
in which the wife of Mr. Fung Yee Sang has interest.

In addition, the Group had certain balances with related
companies, details of which are set out in note 21.

34. HEALTZ & &)

FR - ETESRETERARAMNBEATNEED
BEHNBAZRRERAETRMBRE £
23,200,000 (ZEBAF © 5,000,0005 %)
HBEWMTF :

() FRARBITESRIBUTHESTNY

(i) RBWEE -  RIBLLIRBEBELLES
EEZEHPPCL. MCL- BBLESEHIES = B

=3

E

(i) BEEBEEAEREZEEZR ZrPators
Optical Industrial Limnited{E 5 502 51484 -

A FREERSERARHFETERES &
FRRME21 .
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March, 2006 are as

follows:

Name of subsidiaries

WERALE

Panorama Entertainment
Group Limitad

Panorama Distributions
Company Limited

EHETERAR

Panorama Entertzinment

Company timited

Panorama Entertainment

(Singapore) Pte Ltd.

Punch Pictures Company Limited

Fanorama Film Company Lirmited

Panorama Theatrical Distributions
Company Limited

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
operation (note) share capital
EMRELEE EEBOTR
B (=) BER=E
British Virgin Ordinary
Islands usszoo
REELES EBR00ET
Hong Kong Ordinary
R HK$10,000,002
EBEAR10,000,0028 T
Hong Kong ) Ordinary
BE HK3$10,000
ERR0,000% T
Singapore Ordinary
g 5$100,000
Ei®M100,000
BT
Hong Kong Ordinary
R HK$100
EEp00%T
British Ordinary Us$1
Virgin Islands TERIER
RERZEE
British Ordinary US$100
Virgin islands THEBI00ET

RERTESE

5. EATIHE

R-FEAFSAZ+—8 225 ZHELT
T :

Proportion of
nominal value of

issued capital Principal activities

EETERAEESR K FEXE
Held by the
Company Attributable
and its to the
subsidiaries Group
HELHEER
HHBRAF
s FERELR
100% 100% Investment holding

Distribution of
video products
BITGREER

100% 100%

100%

100% Holding of film rights

FEEARE

Distribution of
video products

ETBRRER

100% 100%

Production of film

RIFRER

100% 100%

Inactive
TEER

100% 100%

100% Investment holding

100%
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

35. WE LTS

Place of Issued and . Proportion of
incorporation/ fully paid nominal value of
Name of subsidiaries operation (nota} share capital issued capital Principal activities
HWERARES SRR EE EBfTR
B (B &) HEREAE BEETEXEETS EEEE
Held by the
Company Attributable
and its to the
subsidiaries Group
BAERAR
HEHEELT
e AEEER
Scenerama Holdings Company British Ordinary US§100 58% 58% Investment holding
Limited Virgin Islands ZERI005T REER
REBELES
Scenerama Company Limited British Ordinary US$100 57.5% 33.4% Investment holding
Virgin slands EBBR1005T REEER
EREZES
Go Film Distribution Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 60% 20% Distribution of films
& HK$10,000 BRET
ERER 10,000 T
Note: They are limited companies incorporated in the respective B HESARFTRIZEERRRYAER A

jurisdictions. 8] =

B Panorama Entertainment Group Limited®h + Ff
EHBARERBEREES -

With the exception of Panorama Entertainment Group Limited,
alt the subsidiaries are indirectly held.

RAFEXFFTREAEMH  HEEAHEAF
AEMARERBES -

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Panorama International Holdings Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 July, 2006
- Unaudited (For Management Purpose)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Film rights
Fihms in progress
Trademark
Payment for acquisition of film ghts

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Amount due from a related company
Pledged bank deposits
Bank balance and cash

CURERNT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to a related companies
Taxation payable
Obligations under finance leases
- due within one year
Bank and other borrowings
- due within one year

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables
Obligations under finance leases
- due after one vear
Bank and other borrowings
- due after one year
Deferred tax Habilities

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

MINORITY INTERESTS
TOTAL EQUITY

HK$

4,534,905.36
68,374,549.38
4,517,397.11
10,000.00
2,179,170.00

79,616,021.85

22,892,278.42

32,698,753.68
3,658,935.10°

10,322,357.72
1,515,879.80

71,088,204.72

(31,636,653.34)
(2/426.34)
(104,674.40)
(383,347.06)

(28,933,129.09)

(61,060,230.23)
10,027,974.49

89,643,996.34

(5,585,940.57)
(898,890.32)

(12,102,990.23}
(4,241,000.00)

(22,828,821.12)

66.815,175.22

(4,023,000.00)
(56,247,898.79)

(60,270,898.7%)
(6,544,276.43)

(66.815.175.22)

g,



Panorama International Holdings Limited
Consolidated Income Statement for the four months ended 31 July, 2006
- Unandited (For Management Purpose)

HK$

Turnover 21,861,780.93
Cost of Sales (14,954,078.44)
Gross Profit . 6,907,702.49
Other operating income 160,817.80
Distribution costs ' (164,169.09)
Administrative expenses (5,514,997.4%
Other operating expenses (514,301.39)
Profit from operations 875,052.32
Finance costs (937,142.79)
Loss before taxation (62,090.47)
Taxation (64,000.00)
Loss for the year (126,090.47)
Attnbutable to ;

Equity holders of the Company 74,996.39

Minority Interest (201,086.86)
Profit for the year (126,090.47)




